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BUSINESS REVIEW

To all shareholders,

In 2021 (the “Year”), the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
("COVID-19") continued to rage around the world, with the
emergence of new variants in the second half of the year affecting
several provinces in the Mainland to varying degrees and slowing
China’s economic growth. At the same time, there has been slump
in activities in the retail sector and property sector during the
second half of the Year, driven by the resurgence of the COVID-19
in certain regions of the country, and tightening government policy
in Mainland. As a result, the business environment in which the
Group operates remains to be challenging and tough during the
Year.

Car Rental Business

The Car Rental Business has been one of the core businesses of the
Group since 2014. Beijing Tu An Car Rental Services Limited* (3t
R RBEHEERREEAT) ("Beijing Tu An"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been responsible for
operating the Group's car rental services business in the PRC.

The normal rental terms of Beijing Tu An’s car fleet with its
customers ranges from three months to two years or longer.
Premium customers of Beijing Tu An would specify the brand
and model of the rented car and Beijing Tu An would acquire
the rented car according to premium customers’ requirements.
By the end of the contractual term, Beijing Tu An will retain the
right to dispose of the used car and keep the proceed as income.
The rental charged by Beijing Tu An to its customers is made with
reference to current rental rates for each particular car models and
adjusted according to the then prevailing market condition.

During the Year, Beijing Tu An has entered into a vehicles rental
agreement in Beijing (the "VRA") with It REHESBHREFRA
Bl ("Beijing DeRunFeng"”), a company founded and owned by the
non-executive director of the Company, Mr. Hu YongGang, for the
supply of its existing car fleet to Beijing Tu An to further develop
its business. Under the VRA, with effect from 5 March 2021, Beijing
Tu An has leased from Beijing DeRunFeng a total of sixteen (16)
premium executive cars together with vehicle licenses for Beijing
Tu An'’s car rental business to let out to its customers.

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The prevailing depressed market atmosphere together with the
unfavourable news of the Group about the debt restructuring
has also affected the performance of Beijing Tu An for the Year.
After serious assessment by the Board, the Group will conduct
its rental car fleet in a more conservative approach. For the Year,
the car rental business segment of the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$11.2 million (2020: approximately HK$14.0
million). The Group will maintain its developmental strategies in
order to enhance its capacity and capture incremental market
share.

Trading and Processing of Goods (Primarily Wood Products)
Business

The Group ventures into an eco-friendly industry for the benefit
and well-being of the society, all mankind and their descendants.
The protection of forests and water is believed to be of utmost
importance to the struggle for survival of mankind against extreme
climate changes. For that reason, the Group believes by taking
part in the development of an environment-focused wood industry
would be meaningful and full of business opportunities in the
future of the society.

Since late 2020, the Group established A% B E R (FII) HIR
‘A ("CWGreen”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
located in LongHua District, Shenzhen as the distribution and
processing arm of the Group in developing the Wood Business in
the PRC.

The primary focus of CWGreen is on furniture woods such as
red mahogany wood, sandalwood, rosewood, pine wood and fir
wood. CWGreen focuses on the procurement and distribution and
processing of various types of wood products including wood logs
and sawn timber of various wood types from vendors in the PRC
and overseas.
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The red wood furniture industry in the PRC can be broadly
divided into three sectors: (i) upstream raw wood logging and
global sourcing of raw material; (i) mid-stream red wood furniture
manufacturers who are be responsible for design and manufacture
of red wood furniture; and (iii) downstream retail customers
and property developers who purchase the finish products. The
Group initially focuses on sourcing of raw materials for furniture
manufacturers and is planning to expand downstream into red
wood furniture manufacturing and sales. The PRC red wood
furniture industry had experienced tremendous growth after the
millennium benefiting from the strong economic growth in the PRC
from the turn of the century and increase in the number of wealthy

consumers.

Red mahogany furniture is traditionally a premium product with
special social recognition and attraction to medium and senior
income groups in the PRC. Famous for being very durable and the
hardness of the materials can subsist to extensive wood carving,
red mahogany wood furniture has been well-known as luxurious
products of the PRC. Local red mahogany resources in the PRC
has been fully exhausted as the demand keeps on in the nation
for centuries already. In recent decades, the materials are mainly
imported from Africa and Southeast Asia. However, owing to recent
years of environmental protection legislation around the globe,
the sourcing of the raw materials is becoming a major entrance
barrier to new participants and scarcity of premium quality furniture
wood material has driven the price of raw material to record high
in recent years. With the adoption of flexible marketing strategic
and optimal inventory management system, the Group achieved
sales of approximately HK$104.4 million during the Year (2020:
approximately HK$9.3 million) of which approximately 68% were
achieved in the second half of the Year.

On the other hand, the Group’s materials trading business is still
suffering. The Group has reviewed the materials trading business
and has adopted more conservative posture in order to avoid
any potential risk and significant loss from this business segment.
During the Year, none of the negotiation of new orders or new
deals of materials trading could arrive at terms that could meet the
risk reduction requirement. As a result of all the above, the Group
recorded HK$Nil from the materials trading business during the
Year (2020: HK$Nil).
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Financing Services and Investment Businesses

The Group has already suspended its securities trading and assets
management businesses and its money lending business. The
Group will continue to adopt prudent capital management and
liquidity risk management to preserve adequate buffer to meet
the funding requirements of its core business segments mentioned

above.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Despite any unpredictable events, the Board will continue to
develop the forest-related business including forest management
and distribution and process of forest and timber products and to
expand downstream into red wood furniture manufacturing and
sales. On 9 March 2022, the Company entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement for the provision of wood construction
moulding, wood flooring, doors and window frames and other
wood products to China Construction Eighth Bureau Development
and Construction Limited" (FZ/\FEEELZBREAF) (“China
Construction Eighth Bureau”), an independent third party
which is not a shareholder of the Company and not connected
with the Company, its shareholders or Right Momentum Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr.
Lyu (the
enterprise approved by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-

“Investor”). China Construction Eighth Bureau is an

Rural Development of the PRC as a qualified enterprise for new
housing construction primarily engaged in housing construction,
infrastructure, industrial installation, investment and development,
and engineering design in the PRC, Africa, the Middle East, Central
Asia and Southeast Asia.

FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING

Appointment of the Joint Provisional Liquidators for
restructuring purpose in Cayman Islands

Having explored different options to restructure the debts of the
Company, the Board decided to implement a management led
restructuring under a court-supervised provisional liquidation
regime pursuant to the laws of the Cayman Islands, commonly
known as a “light touch” provisional liquidation, which provides
a statutory moratorium prohibiting the commencement or
continuance of any proceedings against the Company without the
leave of the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman
Court”) in the Cayman Islands.

ky For identification purposes only
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Accordingly, in order to facilitate the Company's financial
restructuring, a winding up petition together with an application
for the appointment (the "JPL Application”) of joint and
several provisional liquidators (the “JPLs") of the Company (for
restructuring purposes) on a light touch approach for restructuring
purposes was presented and filed with the Cayman Court by the
Company.

The JPL Application was heard before the Cayman Court on 2
February 2021 (Cayman lIslands time). The Cayman Court made
the orders as sought by the Company under the JPL Application,
inter alia, (i) Osman Mohammed Arab and Lai Wing Lun of RSM
Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and Martin Nicholas
John Trott of R&H Restructuring (Cayman) Ltd., were appointed as
JPLs of the Company on a light touch approach for restructuring
purpose. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 2 February 2021 and 5 February 2021 for details.

On 28 January 2022, the Company'’s solicitors has taken out an ex
parte originating summons with the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “Hong Kong Court”) for the
hearing on 8 February 2022 of an application by the Company
for an order to convene a meeting of the creditors (the “Scheme
Meeting”) of the Company to consider and, if thought fit, approve,
with or without modification, a scheme of arrangement (the
“Scheme”) proposed by the Company, pursuant to section 670
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). By an order of the Hong
Kong Court, the Scheme Meeting was to be convened on 11
March 2022.

On 16 February 2022 (after trading hours), the Company, the
JPLs, the Investor and Mr. Lyu have entered into the conditional
Restructuring Agreement, pursuant to which the Company will
carry out the Restructuring Transactions involving (i) the Capital
Reorganisation; (i) the Investor’s Subscription; and (iii) the Scheme.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2022 for details of the Restructuring Agreement and the
Restructuring Transactions.
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At the Scheme Meeting convened and held on 11 March 2022,
the Scheme was approved by the requisite statutory majorities
of the creditors. On 22 March 2022, the Company'’s solicitors
received a letter from the Hong Kong Court informing that Mr.
Justice Harris will make an order to sanction the Scheme without
modification. The sealed sanction order will be delivered to the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong when the Hong Kong Court
resume normal proceedings or when the general adjournment of

proceedings ends.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the group

Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$116.1 million, which represented
an increase of approximately 378% as compared to the revenue
of approximately HK$24.3 million as recorded for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase was mainly resulted from the
increase in turnover on trading and processing of wood products
goods from approximately HK$9.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$104.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Cost of sales and services rendered

Cost of sales and services rendered of the Group grew by
approximately 411% from approximately HK$19.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$101.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales volume of wood products

goods during the Year.

Gross profit and margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$14.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an
increase of approximately 228% as compared to the gross profit
recorded in the prior year. The gross profit margin decreased from
18.1% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 12.4% for the year

ended 31 December 2021.
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Other income, gains and (losses), net

Other income, gains and (losses), net of the Group representing
net other losses decreased by approximately 87%, from net
losses of approximately HK$375.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to net losses of approximately HK$48.2
The difference

was primarily due to the net effect of the (i) fair value loss on

million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") of
approximately HK$46.4 million for the Year (2020: approximately
HK$347.4 million); (i) loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net of approximately HK$2.2 million for the Year
(2020: approximately HK$2.4 million); (iii) loss on impairment of
an unlisted fund investment of approximately HK$Nil for the year
(2020: approximately HK$10.9 million); and (iv) loss on deemed
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$Nil for the Year (2020:
approximately HK$21.3 million).

Allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade, loan and
other receivables, net

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had recorded
allowances for “expected credit losses” (“ECLs") on trade, loan
and other receivables of approximately HK$2,850,000 (2020:
HK$348,305,000) in total which is mainly comprising of allowances
for ECLs on trade receivables of approximately HK$1,020,000
(2020: HK$347,104,000); reversal of allowance for ECLs on trade
receivable of approximately HK$Nil (2020: HK$400,000); and
allowances for ECLs on other receivables of HK$1,830,000 (2020:
HK$1,600,000).

BMgA iz R (F548) /FE8
AEBMPEMUA IR (B518) /28> BD
HMEEFE AEE_S_SF+_H
=+—HIEFEREIEFEEA375,000,000
BLTRLNIREHRE_T_—F+_8
—+—BIEEENEEFEEL48,200,000
BT ZEBIEHARTINSBZIE
BN (VERNEBEAFES ARG (T
AFEEHAETE ) NEREEQAFES
B#H46,400,0008 T (Z2EZFF | &
347,400,000 7T) ;(iIVERLEEWE - HE
KR EEB AR 542,200,000 7T (=
T FF 492,400,000 7T) ;(iii) EWEL
TREESHNREBENERBT (T2

£ 1 #910,900,0005 7T) ; (iv)ﬁmﬁ{’ﬁﬁ
EWNBARBEEAZET (CEZZTF L
21,300,00038 7T) °

FEUCER =N Bl R B e 7 18 % BB By FE A
EEEE ((FBHIEEEE) #E
HE_Z-_—F+"A=+—HIEEE &
EEREREWERN ER R EMEWRIE 8
REEBE) ((RIEEEE) BHaH0
2,850,000 7T (Z = — =4 : 348,305,000
7o) EEXEHEBRRFBREEHRBEREEBY
1,020,000 7T (ZZEZZEF © 347,104,000/

7T) FEMERR B GEEEBEEFHRLOOTE
7T (ZZEZ”Z £ 1 400,000587T) ; REMAEU
FIBTARRE B 518 #151,830,000/8 T (ZF
— =4 1 1,600,00078 7T) ZHAY ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Z—ZZ—FF# 11



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEs R R th

To properly account for the risk adhered to those long outstanding
trade, loan and other receivables as, the management of the
Company has engaged an independent valuer to assess the
risk of potential losses based on the management’s estimate of
the lifetime ECLs, which are estimated by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of the trade receivables,
debtors’ settlement records and financial status, expected
timing and amount of realisation of outstanding balances and
ongoing business relationship with debtors. The management
also considered forward-looking information that may impact the
debtors’ abilities to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the allowances for ECLs on trade receivables.

There has been no significant changes in inputs and assumption
applied in 2021 as compared with those applied in 2020.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$2.9 million during the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease was mainly due to decreasing PRC
selling and distribution staff costs incurred in facilitating business
operations.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
65% from approximately HK$44.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$15.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the
continuing effort of the Group in streamlining operations and
reducing costs.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased from approximately HK$120.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$117.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately
HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
income tax credit of approximately HK$43.0 million), mainly on
operating profits of the Group’s wood products business in the
PRE.
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Significant Investments Held
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group &%

had the following significant investments held with a value of 5 per
cent. or more of the Group's total assets which were classified as

51 5 B 7 A

RAENERKE
TR —FRIBSIFFTTRA=+—

o

T
Y

HLEEE AEEFAUTNLGEEREER
BES%HAU LB N ERBAFESABREN

financial assets at FVTPL: THMEBENEAKRE .
Performance/ Size as  Total amount
Number of Change in compared  of dividends
shares of  Percentage fair value to the Group's received
Fair value  investments of investments for the  total assets for the
as at held as at held asat  year ended asat  year ended
Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
costs 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
BE
& S #BE
NZ8--F RIBS-F +ZB PEE “E--F
RZBZ-F +ZA + A =+-B ZB°-§ +ZB
+ZB = s LLEFER +28 ==nE
=+-B HEhRR HENRE 8/ =it LLFEM
Name of the investments BELHE REME WATE REHE Bl ATESY HEAERE BHRILHE
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000)
(Fi#5) (Fi#5) (Fi#5) (Fi#5)
Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet EP%ﬁ ( D) BRANE N/A!
Microfinance Co., Ltd.* ERERAT 111,750 - TER 2 (4,744) 0 -
Zuoshishi Technology Service 1&%?%1%&?% (57 N/A**
(Beijing) Company Limited* ERAR 67,050 11,045 @R 1 (32,221) 5 -
Spring Power Holdings Limited Spring Power Holdings
Limited 23,474 1,749 498 3 (8,873) 1 -
Performance/ Sizeas  Total amount
Number of Change in compared  of dividends
sharesof  Percentage fair value  to the Group's received
Fairvalue  investments of investments forthe  total assets for the
as at held as at heldasat  year ended asat  yearended
Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
costs 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
HE
ZZIZf RN BE
RIEZZE RZ2°ZE +ZA FEE  “BCEF
RITITE +ZA +Z8 =+-B ZBCEf T8
+ZA =+-A =+-f IFEER +ZA8 =+-H
=t-H FENRP HENRE &/ STz IEFEMN
Name of the investments RELH REMA NATE REY=E BAE  ATEEY BELERRE BHRELEH
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000)
(FEm) (F#7) (FEm) (FE7m)
Zhongin (Heilongjiang) Internet i (RAED) EHANE N/A
Microfinance Co., Ltd.* EFAERAF 111,750 4,744 TER 2 (160,646) 3 -
Zuoshishi Technology Service MEZRERS 00R) N/Ax*
(Beijing) Company Limited* ERAE 67,050 43,266 B 1 (158,108) 27 =
Spring Power Holdings Limited Spring Power Holdings
Limited 23474 10,622 498 3 (25.977) 7 -
B represented by RMB100,000,000 out of total registered capital of * RERZ I E AR AR ¥S5,272,000,0007cHFHI AR HE

RMBS5,272,000,000.

X represented by RMB1,029,963 out of total registered capital of RMB9,363,296. *x

* For identification purposes only.
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Description of the investments

Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet Microfinance Co., Ltd.* is
an unlisted company established in the PRC which principally
engaged in internet microfinance business. The industry of this
company continued to be under stringent government reformation
policies in China in recent years. In light of the deteriorating
financial performance and the uncertainty in the debt collection
rate, the valuation of this investment has resulted in a further

downward adjustment.

Zuoshishi Technology Service (Beijing) Company Limited* is
an unlisted company established in the PRC which principally
engaged in the provision of innovation service for start-up
technology companies and related investment activities. The
capital market in China has experienced high volatility during
the year as being affected by the global COVID-19 pandemic
and similar fluctuations appeared in the capital market in US and
Europe. GDP growth in China was significantly slowed down in
years 2020 and 2021 which has hindered the future outlook of the
business sector and also causing notable downward pressure to
the investment's future returns and to the result of the valuation

conducted by independent valuer.

Spring Power Holdings Limited is an unlisted company established
in BVI that controls a group of companies principally engaged
in development and manufacturing of human like robots. The
financial performance of this company has stabilized but still
fell short of original projection and lowered the expectation to
its future profitability and consequently affected the valuation

conducted by independent valuer.

*  For identification purposes only
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Change of Company Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2020, the Shareholders
have approved to change the English name of the Company from
“HongDa Financial Holding Limited” to “China Wood International
Holding Co., Limited” and to change the dual foreign name in
Chinese of the Company from " SAEERIERBRAE]" to " AR
BIRIERAERAT".

Share Consolidation

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2020, the Company
implemented the share consolidation of every twenty shares into
one consolidated share (the “Share Consolidation”). The Share
Consolidation was effected on 26 June 2020.

Rights Issue

Subject to the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the
Company proposed on 15 May 2020 to implement the rights
issue of new consolidated shares on the basis of one (1) new
consolidated share for every five (5) new consolidated shares held
at the close of business on 8 July 2020 (being the record date) at
the subscription price of HK$0.20 per share (the “Rights Issue”).
On 30 July 2020, a total of 2,035,335 shares were issued under the
Rights Issue, the total gross proceeds of HK$410,000 was utilised
in meeting costs relating to the Rights Issue. Reference is made
o (i) the announcements of the Company dated 15 May 2020, 30
July 2020 and 7 September 2021; and (i) the prospectus of the
Company dated 9 July 2020 in relation to, amongst others, the
Rights Issue.

BEAERE
BERFABNR_-_B_ZEF,AZ+=H
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'HongDa Financial Holding Limited J& &
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Rz &4
REREARAR_FT_FTFA-+=H
BTHRRBEAE LEBNEERERSE
ARABREB-TREROEGHA—REHRD
(TRRIEH) ROGHNR-ZZZZERX
E—+/\E|/_:EXSZO

13‘—?H’x‘

TROGHENRER AANR_T_TFA
E—FEEL@@%& -2 2 = AN = (1
S EE) EXERBERBERAERG)RN

affRMNEZ-—(RTSHRND ZEEET
wmartkinzMfik FRESASRRKD0.20
B (k) R-T-_TFLtR=+H"

RIEHARE 2174H2,035,335R R % KRFF1E
RIB4EEE S $£410,00058 0 E AR TR
BN - ZIR M)V AT HBEA T -F
FEA+HEB-ZZ2ZZEFtEtRA=+HBHKZ
T —FHAAtHZAE; Rii)A2EHE
B_E_ZFLTRBNBZHERER "REA
B (A BE) #Ege

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Z—ZZ—FF# 15



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEs R R th

Enforcement of Share Charge by the Holder of
US$30,000,000 Senior Guaranteed and Secured Fixed Rate
Note

On 2 September 2020, the Company was informed by the
registered agent of its special purpose entity that the 51%
charged equity interests of the Group's investment project in the
USA held by it was being enforced by the holder of the related
US$30,000,000 senior guaranteed and secured fixed rate note.
The financial implication of such an enforcement of share charge
has led to the deconsolidation of all assets and liabilities held
under that investment project in the USA from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in 2020. Having considered the
collectability of the amount due to the Group as of the date of the
enforcement, approximately HK$21.3 million loss was recorded for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as loss on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries. Details of the enforcement has been disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 4 September 2020 and 20
November 2020.

Indemnification Claims from an Unlisted Investment Fund

On 10 November 2020, an unlisted investment fund invested by
the Group was placed into liquidation. Subsequently, the Company
received the request from the joint official liquidators so appointed
to handle the liquidation of the unlisted investment fund about
the Company’s obligation to indemnify the other investors to
such unlisted investment fund at the preliminary total amount of
HK$200.0 million. The financial implication of such indemnification
claims was reflected as other expenses to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020. Details of the indemnification claims has been disclosed in

the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2020.
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Liquidity and Financial Position RBEE KRB

2021 2020

—E-—% —ETFg

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FEx FABT

Current assets MENEE 162,596 59,702

Current liabilities mENaE 1,487,240 1,149,214

Current ratio REEER 0.11 0.05
At 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the Group A _E T —F+"A=+—H > xEENIR

amounted to approximately HK$2.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$3.3 million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings amounted approximately
HK$798.0 million (2020: approximately HK$638.8 million) and
the Group also has liability component of convertible bonds of
approximately HK$Nil million (2020: approximately HK$144.0

million).

On the basis of the considerations as disclosed in the note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, the Board is confident that the Group will

ERIBEEFEB/YHA2,500,0008 7T (ZF
—ZEF 493,300,000 7T) c T —4F
+ZB=+—H > AEEN BRITREM
fEE#7%4798,000,0008 T (ZE 54 .
#1638,800,00078 70) R A EBE N AT ] E
HFZEEBPUAREET (CTEZZF L
144,000,000 7T) ©

REAERGEE_T_—F+-_A=1+—H
LFEENGEMBRENE2RAREZ ER
? CBEEEREFERNARRBRAERAEY

have sufficient financial resources to meet its debt repayment and EREMHEHREEREEBNIMES
finance needs for its operations for the foreseeable future. E e
Gearing Ratio BEERMBALE
2021 2020
—F-—%F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Total interest-bearing bank and other STERITREMEERERK
borrowings and liability components of R ESZ 8EE D
convertible bonds 797,978 782,823
Total assets BEMEE 224,642 163,211
Gearing ratio BEAMEHE 355.2% 479.6%
The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in B E&BLERF VT ETEHRFRNELRE
total assets as a result of increased activities incurred for the year. ENIE NS E ELEIE MR-
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As at 31 December 2021, the maturity profile of the interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group falling due
within one year amounted to approximately HK$798.0 million
(2020: approximately HK$638.8 million), of which bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$59.2 million (2020: approximately
HK$57.6 million) were denominated in Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2021, the maturity profile of the liability
components of the Group’s issued convertible bonds falling
due within one year amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2020:
approximately HK$144.0 million).

Capital Structure

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As
at 31 December 2021, the total number of the ordinary shares
of the Company was 342,572,857 (2020: 342,572,857) (with an
aggregate nominal value of approximately HK$68.5 million (2020:
approximately HK$68.5 million)).

Charges on the Group’s Assets

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s other borrowings
were secured by the Group's trade receivables of gross amount
approximately HK$600.6 million (2020: approximately HK$600.6

million).

Foreign Currency Exposure

The foreign currency exposure of the Group primarily arises from
revenue or income generated, cost and expenses incurred and
certain bank and other borrowings denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Group’s operating
units. For the Group's operating units that have United States
dollar and Renminbi as their functional currencies, their foreign
currency transactions and the units’ monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that were translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at 31 December
2021 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was
not significant and therefore had not engaged in any hedging
activities.
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Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2021, the contingent liabilities of the Group is
set out on Note 40 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements of this annual report.

Capital Commitments

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
capital commitments amounted to approximately HK$36.7 million
(2020: approximately HK$35.8 million).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 16 (2020:
29) employees. Total costs including the emoluments of the
directors of the Company, amounted to approximately HK$4.3
million for the year (2020: approximately HK$16.1 million). The
emolument policy of the Group is determined with reference
to the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees (including Directors), as well as the results of the Group
and the market conditions. The Group provides discretionary
bonus, medical insurance, provident fund, education subsidy and

training to its employees.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the year
ended 31 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major
capital assets or other business. However, the Group will continue

to identify new opportunities for business development.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING OF THE SHARES

At the request of the Company, trading in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange has been suspended with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 22 October 2021 and will remain suspended
until further notice.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFREFEREE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lyu NingJiang, aged 62, was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director on 3 December 2020. He
has received education in mainland China with forestry major. He
had worked with various foresty-related corporations in mainland
China with extensive experience in the wood business. Mr. Lyu
has over 15 years of experience in senior corporate management.
Mr. Lyu was the chairman and chief executive of China Wood
Group Company Limited* (FEIARH ((2E) BIRAB]) during the
period from 1998 to 2013. Mr. Lyu was redesignated as the senior
consultant of China Wood Group Company Limited* (FREIAAMT (8
&) BBRA 7)) from 2013 to 2018.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu YongGang, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 3 December 2020. He has received education in
mainland China with international trade major. Mr. Hu has over
twenty years extensive experience in the automobile business in
mainland China and he operates automobile dealers, 4S spareparts
service shops and car rental business for almost 17 years. Mr. Hu
is the founder owner of BeiJing DeRunFeng Car Rental Company
Limited* Qb REHESBEHERR LT since 2012.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Xianming, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 July 2014. He assumed various
positions such as the supervisor of the legal and auditorial center of
Fanhua Construction Group Limited* CZ 22 R EBBRAE), the
general legal counsel, the vice-president and the board secretary
of China Agritech Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market). He graduated from China Foreign Affairs University with a
master degree of International Law and is a certified enterprise risk

manager.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. An Dong, aged 51,

non-executive Director on 3 December 2020. He holds a Master's

was appointed as an independent

Degree in Laws from the China University of Political Science
and Law, and has participated in the Private Equity Investment
Program of Peking University HSBC Business School. Mr. An holds
a Lawyer’s Licence of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Professional Qualifications Certificate (Intermediate Level) issued
by the China General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. An has extensive
experience in legal affairs in corporate and banking sector, and
he is specialised in asset restructuring, equity transfer, merger and
acquisition, share issuance, real estate operation and investment,
private equity management, as well as financial and economic
litigation. Mr. An has joined Beijing Bairui Law Firm (Shenzhen) as a
partner since December 2008 and also served as general manager
of Shenzhen Both Coasts Investment Management Co., Ltd.* Mr.
An has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279) since
August 2017 and Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 851)

since November 2019.

Mr. So Yin Wai, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 December 2021. Mr. So graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1986 and he has
been in the accounting profession for more than 30 years. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has previously worked for
international public accounting firms and been involved in the
audit of a number of international and local engagements and
listed companies. He is currently the sole practitioner of his own
firm “Alex So & Co. (Certified Public Accountants)”

auditing experiences, Mr. So also specializes in company secretarial

. Apart from his

work, tax planning and management consultancy matters. Mr. So
is the chairman of “New SOHO New Life Association” and the
former chairman of “Chinese Business Association”. He is also the
honorary auditor of a number of voluntary organizations, including
“Hong Kong Parkinson’s Disease Foundation” and “HK Po Yin

Association for the Development of Education”.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2021. This report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures and regards a pre-eminent
board of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to
all shareholders as the core elements of its corporate governance
principles. The Company endeavours to ensure that its businesses
are conducted in accordance with rules and regulations, and
applicable codes and standards. The Company has adopted the
Code Provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Board reviews at least annually the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure its continuous compliance with
the Code, and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.
The Company was in compliance with the applicable code
provisions in the Code (the “Code Provision”) for the year ended
31 December 2021. The following sections set out the principles
in the Code as they have been applied by the Company, including
any deviations therefrom, for the year under review.

BOARD

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for
overseeing the overall strategy and development of the Company,
as well as monitoring the internal control policies and evaluating
the financial performance of the Group. The Board sets the overall
strategies and directions for the Group with a view to developing

its business and enhancing the shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises one
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details

of Directors” of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Lyu NingJiang, being the chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”) is responsible for the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. Code Provision A.2.1 requires
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Lyu, being the Chairman, has also been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Group (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
who will keep provided strong and consistent leadership to
achieve strategic business growth of the Group to enable a better
execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer vested in the
same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. All the Board
members will be ensured to keep abreast of adequate, complete
and reliable information by Mr. Lyu on issues to be discussed
at Board meetings. Moreover, the independent non-executive
Directors (the “"INEDs") provide independent and professional
opinion on issues addressed at Board meetings and therefore,
the Board believes that there is a balance of power and authority
governed by the current Board structure with more than half of
them being the INEDs and does not intend to make significant
change in the composition of the Board. The Board will continue
to review the Board composition from time to time and shall
make necessary changes when appropriate in a timely manner

accordingly and inform the Company's shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the period from 1 January 2021 to 30 March 2021 and
the period from 8 December 2021 to 22 December 2021, the
Company failed to meet the following requirements of the
Listing Rules as a result of resignation of Mr. Fung Tze Wa on
31 December 2020 and resignation of Mr. Wan Man Wah on
8 December 2021 respectively:

1.  the Board of Directors must include at least three
independent non-executive directors, under Rule 3.10(1) of

the Listing Rules; and

2. the audit committee comprising non-executive directors only
and with a minimum of three members under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
independent non-executive Directors of the Company shall

represent not less than one-third of the Board throughout the Year.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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During the Year, the attendance of each Director is set out below:

ER BEFHNHFEBROT -

Meeting attended/
meetings entitled to
attend
BRUERY
Director £ AREERH
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Lyu NingJiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BELILE EEREFHNTE) 31/31
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Hu Yong Gang K& 31/31
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTESR
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE 31/31
Mr. An Dong ZRAE 31/31
Mr. Wan Man Wah (appointed on 31 March 2021 and BXERE ( AR —F-RA=1+—HEZ®T
resigned on 8 December 2021) THRZEZ ¢+ BN\BEHD) 16/16
Mr. So Yin Wai (appointed on 23 December 2021) BERLE W_BE-_—F+_A_+=HEZMD 11

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

COMMITTEES

As part of the corporate governance practices, the Board has
established the remuneration committee, nomination committee,
and audit committee. All of the committees are mainly composed
of INEDs with terms of reference in accordance with the principles
set out in the Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 27 November 2009 with written
terms of reference. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises all of the INEDs, namely Mr.
Zhao Xianming, Mr. An Dong and Mr. So Yin Wai, and is chaired by
Mr. Zhao Xianming.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
formulating remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages of executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Directors.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations on the remuneration packages of the existing

Directors.

Details of the remuneration paid to members of the senior
management of the Group (including the Directors) by band for the
Year are set out below:

wINEE T
AAFRZBEAE+—A -+ ERLE
AEEBERENFHEZES (RHER
) REAFERAN HFHEETHREE
EFMABIFRTES NHERLE 2
REERBEASE HERLEAREE
BHER -

HMZE TR T BRG] FHEBNEER  #
ERTESHNEBHFMNGE URAEFE
REERESEHWNNREZ -ER FMESR
CERNRAEEENFMTRLIREESR

FEEENFEESREEENE (BEE

) ZFMEENT

Number of senior
management (including
the Directors)

SREERE (BEFEER)
Remuneration band EMEE N |
Below HK$1,000,000 181,000,000 7T 9

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held

and the attendance of each member is set out below:

FROFMEEEETT —REH TXH
HIEMENHFERNR

Attendance

HERER

Committee Member %8
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERALE
Mr. An Dong ZREE

Mr. Wan Man Wah (appointed on 31 March 2021 and
resigned on 8 December 2021)
Mr. So Yin Wai (appointed on 23 December 2021)

/MIE%EE( RTEC
EJr BN\B#D 0/0
'@%?J%EEE( N

171
171
—F=ZA=1t—-HEZE

—F+ZAZ+=REZD 0/0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 27 November 2009 with written
terms of reference. As at the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
three INEDs, namely Mr. Lyu NingJiang, Mr. Zhao Xianming, Mr. An
Dong and Mr. So Yin Wai, and is chaired by Mr. Lyu NingJiang.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
relevant procedures for nomination of directors, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the composition of the Board and made
recommendations to the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience. The Board
has adopted a policy which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board (the “"Board Diversity Policy”).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and

recommend them to the Board for adoption.

Director Nomination Policy
The Committee shall consider, among others, the following criteria
in evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

. Character and integrity;

° Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the
Company's business and corporate strategy, and the ability
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those
attributes;
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Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member, other directorships, memberships of various
committees and significant commitments;

For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

Ability to develop a good working relationship with other
Board members and contribute to the Board's working
relationship with senior management of the Company;

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board; and

Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company's
business.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meetings were held

and the attendance of each member is set out below:

s (JHENMKEBRTHESESTHE -H
thEERE KEEENENBERE
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RIREARESREREIL
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e EFEZAHRRZEERERE
EEETERMNERAFERR &

s BRARBEFNEMNHEMETER
J5H °

FR BAR—RELZEGTR BWE
HEBREIAT

Attendance

Committee Member Z8 HEER
Mr. Lyu NingJiang BEIEE 1
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE 7
Mr. An Dong ZREL [
Mr. Wan Man Wah (appointed on 31 March 2021 and BXERE ( \ZB_—F-A=+—HEZE

resigned on 8 December 2021) i g fﬁ‘l‘ BNB#D 0/0
Mr. So Yin Wai (appointed on 23 December 2021) FEARE N2 —F+"A°+=HEZD 0/0
AUDIT COMMITTEE BZEEG
As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee of the WRAFHRHI ARBEZEZE® ((BEZE

Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises all three INEDs,
namely Mr. Zhao Xianming (chairman), Mr. An Dong and Mr. So Yin
Wai. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to supervise

the internal control policies, the financial reporting systems and

procedures of the Company, to review the financial statements and

reports of the Group, and to review the terms of engagement and

scope of audit work of the external auditor. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee has met the external auditor of the
Company, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, and
reviewed the Group's results for the year ended 31 December
2021.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, as well as the interim

EZLTEEURAARABZIEZEAES
(B8 2 MMEEMERADEEH TEE
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and annual results of the Group, which, in the opinion of the audit ZEE®RA > ZZEEHRRBER IR
committee, were prepared in compliance with the applicable & Fmi#RAITARS
accounting standards and the Listing Rules.
During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the FR > BIZEZETRITT _RZH > TXH
attendance of each member is set out below: FNERENHERR

Attendance
Committee Member %8 HEER
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERALE 2/2
Mr. An Dong ZREE 2/2
Mr. Wan Man Wah (appointed on 31 March 2021 and mf(%?ﬁi (EA_—\, “—F-RA=+—HEZ®F

resigned on 8 December 2021) YRZZBZ—-F+_A\BHD ”

Mr. So Yin Wai (appointed on 23 December 2021)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a corporate governance committee. The
functions that would be carried out by a corporate governance
committee are performed by the Board as a whole and are as
follows:

1. to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5.  to review the Company's compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of our

operations with applicable laws and regulations.

During the Year, members of the Board have reviewed and
discussed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance at regular board meetings.
They have also reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors, and the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. The Board has reviewed the code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors setting out the standards of
behavior that the Company expects from them and the guidelines
on how they should handle different situations in business dealings

with the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE SET
OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company
periodically issues notices to the Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company'’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of results. The Company has confirmed, having
made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors have
complied with the Model Code throughout the period under

review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the accounts of the Company. Save as disclosed
on Note 2 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the

section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

The Group's external auditor provided the following services to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021:

EFNMMBHRRNEE
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o BRAF 3R G I 75 IR MY 5 I sE 2P
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FEENIINEZBRNBE T - —F+=
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HK$'000

FER

Audit services ZEARTS 1,070

Non-audit services* IR IZBUR TS 186
& The non-audit services mainly comprised review of interim financial — * EREBRBIECEERTRYHEL  MBER

information, tax services and financial due diligence services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted review of both design and implementation effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee

communicates any material issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed an independent third party,
Insightnetic Consultancy Limited (“ICL") to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group

through a series of workshops and interviews; and

J independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by ICL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of ICL as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk

management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
in 2017. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure
that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.
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Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The
Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that

oversights risk management and internal audit functions.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by ICL. The Group maintains a risk register to keep
track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk register
provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and management with a
profile of its major risks and records management’s action taken to
mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually
based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon
the Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks,
if applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and alert
to those risks in their areas of responsibility so that they can take

follow-up actions in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meetings are held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation processes
in order to align risk management with corporate goals in an

effective manner.
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The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal control
mechanism includes information flow and reporting processes,
confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures, and staff

training arrangements, etc.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls and
risk management annually and further enhance the Group's internal

control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit
function for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless,
the directors will continue to review at least annually the need for

an internal audit function.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting ("EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the
right of voting at general meetings shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and the meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board will be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Communication with Shareholders and Procedures for
Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements and press releases, is promptly posted on the
Group's website at www.chinawoodint.com.hk. Shareholders
can also send enquiries to the Board or the Company Secretary,
and/or proposals to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting for
shareholders’ consideration by email at cs@chinawoodint.com.hk
or directly by raising questions at the annual general meeting of

the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate

information to its shareholders and investment pubilic.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and
interim reports, announcements and circulars. The corporate
website of the Company (www.chinawoodint.com.hk) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes to the Company's
constitutional documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company has duly complied with the

relevant training requirement under the Listing Rules.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
hereby present their report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 38 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements in

this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
5 to 19 of this annual report. Description of the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in
Note 6 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and

the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 55.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has a specified dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),

under which the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
the operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital
requirements of the Group and the interests of the Shareholders
of the Company as a whole when proposing any dividend payout.
The Company'’s distribution of dividends shall also be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association of the Company as well as all

applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm
that the Company has maintained during the year under review the
amount of public float as required under the the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, WARRANTS
AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
convertible bonds during the year are set out in Notes 36 and 33
of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on pages 187 to 188. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's distributable reserves comprise the share premium,
other reserves and accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2021,
the Company had no distributable reserves (2020: HK$Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 73% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 35%. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 98% of the
total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 60%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors (“ED(s)")
Mr. Lyu NingJiang

Non-executive Directors (“NED(s)”)
Mr. Hu Yong Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Mr. Zhao Xianming
Mr. An Dong
Mr. Wan Man Wah
(appointed on 31 March 2021
and resigned on 8 December 2021)
Mr. So Yin Wai
(appointed on 23 December 2021)

In accordance with Articles 83(3) and 84(1) of the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr.
Zhao Xianming, Mr. An Dong and Mr. So Yin Wai shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and, being
eligible, would offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be

independent as at the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 21 of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the Year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is determined with reference
to the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees (including Directors), as well as the results of the Group
and the market conditions. The Group provides discretionary
bonus, medical insurance, provident fund, education subsidy and
training to its employees. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive to eligible participants, details of

which are set out below in the section “Share Option Scheme”.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in Notes 13 and 14 of the Notes to the

consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company or their respective associates had registered
any short positions in the share capital of the Company and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules adopted by the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the total issued share capital of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares:

RIZEISFR :

Percentage of the
Company's issued

Number of share capital
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interested (Note 3)
EE27F
B#TkRE
BEREEN MESL
TERRRHE 8/ #uitE R ¥E (Hirzt3)
Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 174,961,694 51.07%
Z@HEFRAE (H:21) BnlERE
Dundee Greentech Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 39,475,000 11.52%
Dundee Greentech Limited (¥fz£2) BnkERE
China Orient Asset Management Corporation Person having a security interest in shares 113,073,694 33.01%
FERAEEEEAT ReHEEEFETZAL
Notes: B EE -

(1) These 174,961,694 (as consolidated under the Share Consolidation) shares
are registered in the name of Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) (“Sino Merchant”), the entire issued
share capital of which is owned as to 60% by Ms. Deng Shufen and 40% by
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan. Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms. Liu Jiangyuan are deemed to
be interested in all the shares and underlying shares in which Sino Merchant is
interested by virtue of the SFO. As Mr. Dai Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Deng
Shufen, he is deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares
which Ms. Deng Shufen is deemed to be interested in for the purpose of the
SFO.

(2) These 39,475,000 (as consolidated under the Share Consolidation) shares are
registered in the name of Dundee Greentech Limited (a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands), the entire issued share capital of which is held by
Mr. Liu Hailong.

(3) The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on the issued share
capital of the Company as consolidated under Share Consolidation comprising
342,572,857 shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person
(other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company” above) had
registered an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded in the

register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme was adopted on 3 June 2016
(the “Scheme”) by the shareholders. The purpose of the Scheme
is providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group. The Scheme was adopted
for a period of 10 years commencing from 3 June 2016 and will
remain in force until 2 June 2026.

Eligible participant under the Scheme includes any full-time
or part-time employees, executives (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any suppliers of goods or
services, any customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support, any
shareholder of any member of the Group, any adviser or
consultant to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group and any other groups, or classes of
participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to

the development and growth of the Group.

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of the offer for grant which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii)

the nominal value of the Shares.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the
Company as nominal consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 21
days from the date of offer for grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions
of early termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the
Board and stated in the offer for the grant to a grantee, there is
no minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised and no performance target
which needs to be achieved by a grantee before the options can
be exercised.
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Based on 6,481,375,000 shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the Scheme, the maximum number of shares to be issued upon
the exercise of options that may be granted under the Scheme
are 648,137,500 shares, being 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of adoption. After the share consolidation being effective on
26 June 2020, the total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme is 32,406,875 shares, representing 9.5% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021. The maximum
entitlement of each participant shall not in any 12-month period
exceed 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to

time.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no option was granted
under the Scheme. In addition, there was no outstanding share
option under the Scheme as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There has been no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with the Director is
or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisting
during or at the end of the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to
the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision had been in force throughout the Year and up
to the date of this report. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors
and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and the share option scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the Year

or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is disclosed in Note 43

of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in Note 43
of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or
non-exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing

Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the events set out on Note 45 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report, the Group

has no significant events after the reporting period.

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIETY AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

The environmental, social and governance report prepared with
the assistance of a professional third party for year 2021 will be
published separately in compliance with the requirement of the

Listing Rules.

EHESTRE

REBEARNBEBRERMA RRNBEREE
RER BREFRBEEMENATRER
HIEARNBERMAEEENFEHRN—
DRERTEH R ER GERE - BEEX
HERRBEER SN PERFBERER-
EREEARERXNEBRAEFERNEESR
SHREM TR ERBEEESTASR
BEESERBLGRAEFCEEEEREREE
MWEE-

2 RN 177 5

BRA A B AR AR (B 35 R P AR HE 5T 8IS >
0 0 1 S A AR A AT BITR
RIREA AT B L EMH R EERASL
5) 817 AR 1 B9 1 o B A A B RO 4R POST I SR
ERIAER -

FRERRXS
AERRBE_S-_—F+-A=+—81t
EESTUMEABMESRSNGAMBERE
o 3 B R A3 R

FRGEEMHBRERWEEM 43T E Z TR
BARZIMABHRETRABETZATR
BIFRRHERZ NIRRT EMERS -

WEMHRSIE

PRI A E RS M B RRM TN F452
EESN AEERREPRL BB EEAE
Ig o

RI-HBREXREME
CECFEB HBREARSMELE

ZHRMER BIRE EHRAEEBILT
%o

44 CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED AFAREIBRIZERAIRAR



Report of the Directors

EEGHS

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND
REGULATIONS

The Company encourages its employees to understand, comply
with and keep themselves abreast of the laws, rules and regulations
applicable to their positions and the operation of the businesses
of the Group as any violation could jeopardize the integrity of
the Group. The Company has employed suitable personnel and
engaged professional advisers as and when appropriate to provide
legal advice on the applicability, existence or interpretation of any
laws, rules and regulations. The Board is not aware of any violation
of the applicable laws, rules and regulations that had a significant
impact on the business and/or operation of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including but not limited employees, customers,

bankers, service providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human
resources management is to reward and recognise our employees
by providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives, and opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers
The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset

growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers
To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers and

has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when necessary.
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Auditor

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 had been audited by McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment as auditor at the Company's

forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE
COMPANY’S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor’s
report contained on pages 47 to 50 of the Annual Report, the
auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) did not express an audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 because of the significance
of the matters described in the section “Basis for Disclaimer of

Opinion”.

The Board’s Response to the Disclaimer Opinion

The conditions together with other considerations forming
the opinion of the Board to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on the going concern basis is being
described in Note 2 of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements in a section headed “"Going Concern Assumption”.

On behalf of the board of directors of

China Wood International Holding Co., Limited
PAERZERBRASF

(Joint Provisional Liquidators appointed)

(For restructuring purposes only)

Lyu NingJiang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ER S

To the shareholders of China Wood International Holding Co.,
Limited

(Joint provisional liquidators appointed for restructuring purpose only)

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Wood International Holding Co., Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 186,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicate that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$274,560,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 and as at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$1,324,644,000
and HK$1,263,819,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which is dependent upon outcomes
of (i) the restructuring of the Group as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements to renew or extend the existing
borrowings or complete debt financing to meet its liabilities as they
fall due, and (i) new fund is able to be raised to a level sufficient
to finance the working capital requirements of the Group. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that would result from the failure to meet its financial obligations in
the foreseeable future. We consider that the material uncertainty
has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. However, in view of the extent of the uncertainty
relating to the outcomes of the Group's funding activities, we
disclaim our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty relating
to the going concern basis.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an
auditor’'s report. However, because of the matters described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial

statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Audlit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07606
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road,

Wanchai, Hong kong

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Conso|io|afed Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—GF+_A=1+—HULEE

2021 2020
—E2_—F e
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Miat T#ET FHT
Revenue W == 9 116,067 24,304
Cost of sales and services rendered 5 & AR AR RV AR TS (101,651) (19,906)
Gross profit E7 14,416 4,398
Other income, gains and (losses), net H AW~ et K 10
(&518) 7F 88 (48,192) (374,992)
Allowances for expected credit losses ~ FEWIARFN - B
(“ECLs") on trade, loan and HihEWRIETEREE
other receivables, net &8 ((FERAEE RS
BitRF (2,850) (348,305)
Provision for financial guarantee TSR (2,000) (7,200)
Selling and distribution expenses 5 E T ) H R 2 (386) (2,922)
Administrative expenses THER (15,762) (44,617)
Other expenses Hthpxx (101,823) (212,513)
Loss from operation REFRIGESIE (156,597) (986,151)
Finance costs miﬁﬁms 11 (117,730) (120,129)
Share of results of joint ventures FElEEE AR ZEE - (1,091)
Loss before tax FRIRAIAS 1R 12 (274,327) (1,107,371)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigf (B % 15 (233) 42,952
Loss for the year FREsE (274,560) (1,064,419)
Other comprehensive income, HthZ2EUWA > HIRIRIAE
net of tax
ltems that may be subsequently HEBAEEHDERE
reclassified to profit or loss BmNIEE
Exchange difference arising on translation R & IR SN EFE R E 2 = 28
of foreign operations (2,760) (1,206)
Exchange difference reclassified to profit tHEEINEFNER
or loss on disposal of foreign operations  ZXBEH D EEE = (149)
Other comprehensive income FRHEMBEWHA
for the year (2,760) (1,355)
Loss and total comprehensive FHBEEREZEVAELE
income for the year (277,320) (1,065,774)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—HF+_A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E_—F .
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HitaE T#ET FHTT
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEFEIEEMRBE:
Owners of the Company TATEEA (274,550) (1,055,985)
Non-controlling interests JEPERG R (10) (8,434)
(274,560) (1,064,419)
Loss and total comprehensive UTELEEERESER
income for the year EHEUIALEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company iN/N=TEZ Z =N (277,210) (1,056,804)
Non-controlling interests SRR T (110) (8,970)
(277,320) (1,065,774)
Loss per share attributable to TATEE AEEESRER
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (HK dollar) EHA K% (Br) 17 (0.80) (3.09)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

rEMBRR

At 31 December 2021
R-®=—F+=A=+—8

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 F#A5T TFAET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB B R 18 22,994 12,742
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 1,907 1,018
Goodwill mE 20 - =
Intangible assets mILEE 21 24,351 31,082
Interest in an associate R—REE AR 22 = =
Deferred tax assets RERRIRE E 35 = 35
Financial assets at fair value through BATEs ABT 23
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MRAFEtAEGE)
WERMEE 12,794 58,632
62,046 103,509
Current assets MENEE
Inventories s 24 70,457 6,497
Trade receivables FEULAR TR 25 33,200 956
Loan receivable FEWE ™R 26 = =
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE BT R HM 27
other receivables FEW I 56,400 47,450
Tax recoverable PR [E1FRIE 35 = =
Restricted bank balances ZIRBIERTTAEER 28 - 1,467
Bank balances IRIT45ER 28 2,539 3,332
162,596 59,702
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At 31 December 2021
RoZ-—&+=g=+—o

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE F#&T TFET
Current liabilities REAaE
Trade payables FETERFR 29 96,675 3,773
Other payables and accruals Hth AR IE R st FIE 30 556,225 328,301
Interest-bearing bank and sHRIRITREMESR 31
other borrowings 797,978 638,843
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 1,362 1,317
Convertible bonds AR ES 33 - 143,980
Financial guarantee MR 34 35,000 33,000
1,487,240 1,149,214
Net current liabilities e B EFEE (1,324,644) (1,089,512)
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRHER (1,262,598) (986,003)
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HEA®E 32 1,028 496
Deferred tax liabilities EIERRTEE & 35 193 =
1,221 496
NET LIABILITIES BRPEE (1,263,819) (986,499)
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nv'R
At 31 December 2021
RSt H =k A
2021 2020
—E-—%§ =BIEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 TF#ET FHEIT
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners RABEE NGRS
of the Company
Share capital ZiS 36 68,515 68,515
Reserves B (1,324,500) (1,047,290)
(1,255,985) (978,775)
Non-controlling interests FFIERR R (7,834) (7,724)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B4t (1,263,819) (986,499)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 186 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Lyu NingJiang
2E; A 7K B
Chairman and Executive Director

FTERATEE FFHITEE

FELIE18ENGRAMBRFTEBEFTIN
TET A+ HAEREETE
WHTHESRKAEE .

Hu YongGang

Non-executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEREEnE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEB_—FT_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN PN
Foreign
currency Non-
Share Share Capital  translation ~Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
5ME
Rt RiEE  REEHE  ERMEE  EHER St HtREE  RROE
(note 37(3))  (note 37b))  (note 37c))
Wiz3ne)  W2b)  WE370)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAT THER TAT TERL TR TETL TR
At 1 January 2020 RZE_ZE-F-H 68,108 1,059,713 14,593 (7,202 (1,057,59) 771622 (59,204) 18,418
Loss and total comprehensive income  FABERZARALE
for the year - - - (819) (1,055,985  (1,056,804) (8970)  (1,065,774)
Rights issue e 407 - - - - 407 = 407
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BHELERBAT = = = = = = 60,450 60,450
At 31 December 2020 and KZBZEE+-A=1-H
1 January 2021 k_E2_-%-5-H 68515 1,059,713 14,593 (8021) (2113575 (978,775 (1724 (986499)
Loss and total comprehensive income  ERFIER2ARALE
for the year - - - (26600 (274550 (277,210) (10 (277,320)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZR=+-B 68515 1,059,713 14,593 (10,681)  (2,388,125) (1,255,985 (7,834 (1,263819)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—GF+_A=1+—HULEE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Vo2 F#A5T TFAET
Operating activities R RE
Loss before tax FRIEAIES 18 (274,327) (1,107,371)
Adjustments for: U TEIERAE .
Finance costs 15 %:S 117,730 120,129
Share of results of joint ventures ElEEaE N TS - 1,091
Interest income FIE WA (324) (818)
Depreciation on property, W3 BB T s 3T EE
plant and equipment 5,464 6,793
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRAEESEITE 1,168 1,504
Write-off of items of property, Y2~ RS Je 5% 1 16 B M
plant and equipment 35 10
Loss on disposal of items of property,  HEMZ MERREEER
plant and equipment, net S8 3ER 2,177 2,350
Gain on termination of leases #IEAERN WS (4) (1,662)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 244 300
Provision for financial guarantee AR B 2,000 7,200
Provision for claims REEHE BB 93,949 200,000
Allowances for ECLs on trade, FEWER TR~ BERUR EME IR
loan and other receivables, net FIETERE BR1EEE
TREE 2,850 348,304
Fair value loss on financial BATES ABEN
assets at FVTPL TREEQTEGE 46,362 347,413
Impairment of intangible assets EmILEERE 7,462 9,166
Write-off of inventories FEIMH - 3,320
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries fR{EHEMTE A B RIEE - 21,293
Fair value gain on derivative financial AR ESERATE
instruments in relation to ST ENAFERZ
convertible bonds - (1,430)
Fair value gain on investment property I EYH#E A FE W = = (1,552)
Waiver of amount due to a joint venture EREN—RE&EQABRIE - (48)
Impairment of an unlisted fund investment 3F F TR SXHHE - 10,941
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2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g2 F#A5T FAET
Operating profit/(loss) before movements &8 & & & E AV &
in working capital Al (B518) 4,786 (33,067)
Increase in inventories FEIEM (63,960) (3,919)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEURBRFR (GZh0) /B (33,039) 389
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, BE FANRIBEREM
prepayments and other receivables FEUGRRIR (B 0) R (15,198) 2,259
Increase in trade payables & (T BRFR L N 93,003 3,529
Increase in other Hh (I RIB R FEST
payables and accruals FRIEIE N 18,528 23,598
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & EBFT1S, (FTA) R& 4,120 (7,211)
Interest and bank charges paid BEF B RIRITIWE (75) (1,031)
Interest element of lease paid EEERF S8R5 (226) (343)
Income taxes paid EfPIIER (217) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEREFRS (FRA)
operating activities INEFRE 3,602 (8,585)
Investing activities BREEE
Purchases of items of property, BEYX BERRBER
plant and equipment (18,173) (4,128)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BRERREN
plant and equipment FRSARIE 533 5,665
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERATEFTAEEDN
assets at FVTPL TREEPMSHIE 5,000 -~
Cash outflow on deemed disposal of RIELHERBATN 39(a)
subsidiaries HEmH - (52)
Movements of balance with joint venture & & /A B)45ERE SN - 48
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank T IRAIERITAS R
balances (12 hn) 1,467 (1,467)
Interest received [SE eSS 324 18
Net cash (used in)/from SEEE (PTA) /Piig
investing activities HE&F58 (10,849) 84
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2021 2020
Note HK$’'000 HK$ OOO
k23 F#ET TFAETT
Financing activities FLEEED
Proceeds from issue of right shares, BITHE R M PTERIE
net of transaction costs (AR Z AL A - 407
Other borrowings raised HEMEEME 5,531 5,900
Repayment of bank and ERIBTREMER
other borrowings - (5,765)
Principal elements of lease payments HEMRNEZIHS (1,737) (3,518)
Net cash from/(used in) MEFZHRE FrA) IRE
financing activities HER 3,794 (2,976)
Net decrease in cash and RERFEEEY
cash equivalents W PER (3,453) (11,477)
Cash and cash equivalents B—A—HHRERK
at 1 January HNE%EY 3,332 13,994
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEF] REFN R L
changes 2,660 815
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HNR=E
at 31 December RIREZ{EY 2,539 3,332
Analysis of the balances of cash RERFEZEBMERIIN
and cash equivalents
Bank balances IRIT4EER 28 2,539 4,799
Less: Restricted bank balances B ZIREIIRITAEER 28 - (1,467)
2,539 3,332
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60

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Wood International Holding Co., Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. During the reporting
period, the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong has been changed from Room 3006 — 3007, 30/F,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong to 1601, 16/F, Sun House, 90 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in (i) provision of car rental and other services; (i) trading
and processing of goods (primarily wood products); and
(iii) provision of other business services including fund
management.

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited
(“Sino Merchant”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands ("BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company; Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms. Liu
Jiangyuan, shareholders of Sino Merchant, are the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

Appointment of the joint provisional liquidators for
restructuring purpose only

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on 2
February 2021, Osmun Mohammed Arab and Lai Wing Lun
at RSM Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and Martin
Nicholas John Trott of R&H Restructuring (Cayman) Ltd., were
appointed as joint provisional liquidators (“JPLs") of the
Company. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 2 February 2021 and dated 5
February 2021 respectively.

REER

PABREZERBRAS (TEAF)
E—REAXHEHEIMMINER
NE) o KNAF EEMPE RS
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslandse IR EHARE » XA F)
TEBNTIEZS XM BHEBEFHE
B 26555 A /E30183006—3007=
BN ABETHRETIOHEAIITI61Z
1601 E - KRBRONEBHMERS
FRERAE (TH3ZFRR)) iR e

RABA—BREZERAB -HWEA
BANEEEHATERF()RMEAEME
EREMERE (VER EEAKRER)
BERMNMI; RiiVEHESEEEH
MEFERTS ©

AZF-—fE+ZA=+—8FAT
EERAEHREERAT (EHA
%) (—RHRNABETREE (HBE
AREE) SMALKAE) AEAT
MERERREERAR ) MIRG LT
RETEL T (REHEHRBERR)
8% & AT HRAL AR5 ©

EMARNERHENZEHEERRS
B/A

BRERNABDNHTBEMR BZRED
*EEERAINEER REEB U
BK:R&H Restructuring (Cayman) Ltd.HY
Martin Nicholas John Trotth? — &~ —
FZA_HEZTALR R HFRE
BRAN ((HFRERREBAL - EXEFSE
PRERAEARBEBEAZSE Z—FZ
BIHERZEZ—FZAABHNAE
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern assumption

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred
a loss of approximately HK$274,560,000 and as at 31
December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of approximately HK$1,324,644,000 and
HK$1,263,819,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore the Group may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern assumption (continued)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to
the impact of the current and anticipated future liquidity of
the Group. The validity of the Group to operate as a going
concern depends upon whether

(i) the Group will be able to complete the restructuring
arising from the appointment of joint provisional
liquidators and successfully negotiate and agree
with the creditors to renew or extend the existing
borrowings or complete debt financing to meet its
liabilities as they fall due; and

(i) the Group will pro-actively to raise new fund to finance
the working capital requirements of the Group.

The directors consider that after the restructuring, the Group
will continue to meet in full its financial obligation as they
fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements, to write down the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendments to COVID-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

3. R4
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. IR&AFIETRSIETHE BT
(continued) $E%§E\U #)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective
The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2021.
These new and revised HKFRSs include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

EEME N REMNIF T REE
I EAMEIRGER
AEBWEREERASEMGED
AR B2 —F—B—HRAEBEY
M HEEEMNH] RKETE
BUBEREER - ZFMIT K
BIEBMBERESEDBIFEUT
AR AR EEEAERE R ZER] o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RITHRAEZ EREN

SR ER

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 April 2021
beyond 30 June 2021

EAMBREENF16REIT 2 —F A A=THZEBNHERE B —-FmMBA—H

RFFEEEE TR
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BBV BREEREIFET R SERZ R
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
BEGEBE165REST M E BB REE -
B E R A Z Fr S RIA]
Amendments to HKAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets — Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BHEGHEREITRET BE WA ERAARBEE-—FEEN—
BT EXZ R
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle
BEEVBREEN - \EE_Z_TFRAZFENE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BEAGHENFIRETMBRREYT - BB ER RIS IERE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements —
Disclosure of Accounting Policies
EAGHENFIRE] MBRREI I REBUHRESEINER
HREF2HRETEHEARMHIE — S5t BUERIRE
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates
EAGSERESRET G BER Gt fhst S EMEH
—EsHAETE R
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
BEAGHENF12RET RGN - HE—XFEENEENEE
MERARYIRLEIR IR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies, such as investment
property and certain financial instruments that are measured

at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity's returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date the control ceases.

4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

66

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company'’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling shareholders even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition—
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

68

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the

acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment
at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—HF+_A=1+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHHEE @

(continued)

(c) Associates (continued) (c)
The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of

losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group's entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the

retained interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group

and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the

Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses

are also eliminated unless the transaction provides

evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"), which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

(continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company's

presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

4. FE

(d)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

(continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation (continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or

loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

74

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss

during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33.33%
office equipment
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the
term of the lease or 25%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An owned
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the property, and is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4(u) to

the consolidated financial statements.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

76

(9)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis

over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated

useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of

the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised

discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

78

(9)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified

as an operating lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Vehicle rental business licence and licence plates are
accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and are not amortised. They are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

80

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

()  Financial assets (continued)
Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

< amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is

calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other

income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit

losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

84

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the
ECLs model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
the HKFRS15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHHEE @

(continued)

(r) Convertible bonds ()
Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to
convert the bonds into equity instruments, other
than into a fixed number of equity instruments at a
fixed conversion price, are regarded as combined
instruments consisting of a liability and a derivative
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
derivative component is determined using an option
pricing model; this amount is carried as a derivative
liability that is subsequently measured at FVTPL
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the liability
component and is carried as a liability at amortised cost
using the effective interest method until extinguished

on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and derivative components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and derivative components on initial recognition.
The portion related to the derivative component is

expensed immediately.

(s) Trade and other payables (s)
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(t) Equity instruments (t)
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of materials is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the wholesale’s specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the wholesaler as this represents
the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is

required before payment is due.

Revenue from public relation and other financing
services is recognised when the services are performed
to the satisfaction of the customers, which is evidenced
when the end products created by these services are
delivered to the satisfaction of the customers. Revenue
is recognised at a point in time.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

88

(u)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT

4.

FTEFHHE @

(u)

Llﬂzfm&ﬁﬁﬂl&)\ (#&)

RERERWEHSWAZTEER
PRRZEB B M E 8 mE
R, BES —BHAEENR
XERBAEEEMSHMNZERN
E'JK%?I\O?%%E%H%@%KT’E%
F’éuﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ—ﬁﬂﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂo

fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\]
Ao

st A Eﬁ B Ll&

F B WA T FE St R IR B PR ] 0K
FESD o SR I A IR QA F B
StAEMEEYE (D) StER
TEREEHRENEMEEMS
BERMZZERNEENRE®R
Bo-PEERESREEMNS B
BRARZERANEEN#HNE
(RPERE AR BERES R ) o

BEE7

() ESNEEF
BEAZANERREAR
BRI BT B 8 R
ReRRBEREENEER
SHRBEHBREMELER
FRE RS RANMEET
BEFLERE-

BEAZENRBRERE
ERRE A FEET o

(i) BHREEMF
rEEBDEEHRREBAE
SRR FrAEEEHR 2
H-AEEREBERREEER
rTEFEEWBEDLEAE B EH
R o 5T AR AR KER
SR EAEERESR
TBIHRR



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lﬁF

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—Z-

—F+A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(V)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

90

(x)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition

exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

02

(y)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying

amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating

unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is

being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit and
then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
cash— generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables, loan receivables, lease receivables, as well
as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective

financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, loan receivables and lease receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including

time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial

instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHHEE @

(continued)

(z) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (2)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group's debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group's core
operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(conti

(2)

nued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

@) SMRERE @
ERABEEEN ()
ARTE HEEEARENS
REBUKRESEE MBS G LS
HFEH :

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

96

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credlit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of "investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(conti

(2)

nued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

J information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Company
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

98

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

J it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

*  The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group's
understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking

information.

For financial assets, the ECL estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring

the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

100

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which

simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount

through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.

(aa)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ab) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's position at the
end of the reporting period are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving

estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the successful outcomes of the
Group's plans and measures to strengthen its capital
base and liquidity. Details are explained in note 2 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(z), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable

forward-looking information.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(c) Income taxes
The Company is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

During the year, income tax expense of approximately
HK$233,000 (2020: income tax credit of approximately
HK$42,952,000) was charged (2020: credited) to profit
or loss based on the estimated profit from the Group’s

operations.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equijpment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment test.

As at 31 December 2021,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and

the carrying amounts of

right-of-use assets were approximately HK$22,994,000
(2020: HK$12,742,000), HK$24,351,000 (2020:
HK$31,082,000) and HK$1,907,000 (2020: HK$1,018,000)

respectively.

b}

RASEFIEN R E E(G5 @

At FREENEERR (B

d) YE -BERRE BEEEERE
BREEEHRE
ME- BB RRE BELEERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

RAREERRARRTINE,#
HEEE WA IR - NETEE
ERTRER AEBAETH
B K (G5t CHEHFG (()BEES
HEELENAEMNERIETE
BEEFE (NEEREERTHE
LR e SR MR ER
BE RRFEEREEMGS
MRRIREREBRFIRE ; Kiii))
RERRE I RESENEE
HRRR (BEREAEBRARE
EMMIRE) - BEEAGERE
ZE (BREERAREE) iRz
BE AEBEGHEEMBRS
FE%QE’JTH&@%@E BR
RfEE BERRERERA
NBREIR R FE R K > PR BE &
FERERSFTRAFRE

ATE-—E+-A=+-8>
MY BERSE BREER

FRAEESENKREBESNOS
22,994,0008 T (ZE 2= F .
12,742,000 7t) ~ 24,351,000/
T (ZZ T4 1 31,082,000 7T)
521,907,000 (ZEZEF .
1,018,0005 7T) ©

258 103



Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

:ﬁF

B HEIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—Z=

AP = —

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

()

104

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based
on the credit risk of trade receivables. The amount of
the impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material

impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021,
trade receivables was approximately HK$33,200,000

the carrying amount of

(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$834,118,000 (2020: HK$956,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$832,873,000)).

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL that are not traded in an active market. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has utilised
a variety of methods and makes assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each reporting date. Valuation techniques used
include the use or comparable recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other
valuation techniques commonly used by other market
participants. Changes in assumptions on the valuation
techniques could affect the reported fair values of these
consolidated financial assets. The financial assets at
FVTPL have been valued using various approaches.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

)

(9

(h)

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of financial assets at FVTPL was approximately
HK$12,794,000 (2020: HK$58,632,000).

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventory
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period
in order to identify slow moving inventory items.
Management estimates the net realisable value for
inventories based primarily on the latest market prices
and current market conditions. In addition, the Group
carries out an inventory review on a product by product
basis at the end of the reporting period and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is
estimated to be below the cost.

No allowance for inventories are charged for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The carrying
amount of inventories, which are wood products, as
at 31 December 2021 was HK$70,457,000 (2020:
HK$6,497,000).

Provision for claims

When accounting for provision for claims on litigation,
the Group has taken internal and external advice in
considering known claims and actions made by or
against the Group. It carefully assesses the likelihood
of success of a claim or action. Appropriate provisions
are made for claims or actions against the Group on
the basis of likely outcome, but provisions are made for
those which in the view of management are unlikely to
succeed.

In making management’s judgement, the Group
assessed the Group's liability and obligations on a
case by case basis. Provision on possible obligations,
if appropriate, are made based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. As at 31 December
2021, provision for claims was made of approximately
HK$93,949,000 (2020: HK$200,000,000).

RS kR B E 5 @

At A HELNEZRIR (8
(f) BLAFEFARDHEZHEER

(9)

(h)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

FE @&

Ao B SRE L Bk EHE
BATEAES E’J‘i\rﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HEXN%A12,794,00087T (Z& =
T4 58,632,000 7T) ©

FRAEE

Z!K%@ BEERNRSHARESF
E’JEE‘&%%MLA&EU/HﬁE’JT
ER - EEEMAEENTEER
FBEDEZEERRFTHERER
e tbsh s RERPHREHARE
BEERMEENEEETRR
i PJ BT FERBENRRE &
SHEL ERHE -

BHE_E_—ER_ZFE_ZTEF
+-B=+—HLIEE  #Est
REEREE RN_BE-_—F+=
B=+—H && (%Kiuu)m
EREE 470,457,000 T (Z& =
T|AE 6,497,000 7T) ©

FIEH e
EHRARBEIREAFR S
RIER  AEERERBRHEFY
HHEBENEMNRBERFAREESHR
M BB RSN BR 2 % 0 I B IR AT
— AR AR INBI AT BE L o
RIBAEEENER ZK%Iﬁ
HFEEEDDE’J%E%XD&D@D+?KE
B ’IE%%EEEE%Ki(EJﬁE
BLEEHRER-

REREEEBHER  AEEZ
BPEHEEFHHEERER -
REELEERHHNERS (WER)
ThEREERE & E G5t R b
FitE-N -2 _—&F+°A4
=+—H EfFfERERER
#993,949,0008 7 (ZEZE4F :
200,000,000/ 7T) ©

=528 105



Nofes to the Consolidated Financial

imE M HRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—HF+_A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in the currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group's entities such as HK$, United
Status dollars (“US$"”) and Renminbi (“RMB").

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

The directors of the Group are of the opinion that
the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of
movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$
to be insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
is performed on the movements in exchange rates
between US$ and HKS.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on the
Group's financial assets and liabilities denominated in
RMB as the directors of the Group are of opinion that
they are not material to the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument, leading
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and loan receivable) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and other financial
institution, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies,

for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in notes 6(d) and 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has
no significant concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. The Group seeks to minimise its
risk by dealing with counterparties which have good
credit history.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

108

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30
days from the date of billing or could be longer under
certain circumstances. Normally, the Group does not

obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the

Group's different customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HFERREIR ¢

(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERR (@&
Trade receivables (continued) FEWER (1)
The following table provides information about the TREINAEER B —FRK
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade o RS s Sl = i S O =
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: EREBHOKREWERTEREE
BEEAERER .
2021
—E_—fF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARSIRELR IREARE ik
% HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET F#ET
Not yet due i A< %81 HA - 33,244 139
Within 90 days past due HEHA90K A 10% 106 11
Over 180 days past due #1180 K L 100% 833,968 833,968
867,318 834,118
2020
TR
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEARE AL = IREEE B 1E A
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TFAET FHET
Not yet due 8 AR 8 HA - 83 -
Within 90 days past due FIHA0K A - 11,2 -
Over 180 days past due BHR180K L 100% 833,634 832,873
833,829 832,873
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over the

expected lives of the trade receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables

during the year is as follows:

MBRERER @
(b) (EEER @)

AR, (1)
FHBERLEXEARBREEE
BRo ARALLRERAE  RIRKER
FEHEBECENR T BRI R
KA E EH EWER MRS F K
BRUNEENESR

FRNRKEREREEREHW

1= 3

2021 2020

—E—% —ETEHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#T FHE7T

At 1 January T—H—H 832,873 485,916
Allowance made for the year FREE 1,020 347,104
Reversals #[o] - (400)
Exchange difference PERER 225 253
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 834,118 832,873

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BHRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-$-—F+-A=+ BLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Loan receivable

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
lent the loan with face value of US$2,000,000
(2020: US$2,000,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,629,000) to an independent third party.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approval and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken for the recoverable amount. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual’s loan receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amounts. As
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loan receivable
was secured by (i) the pledge of an aircraft leased
to the borrower by a company wholly owned by the
borrower’s sole director; and (ii) 49% equity interests of

the borrower.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan
receivable as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

¥

MR ER @
(b) (EEERK (&)
FEWER

G 2R an— R Ty diciy
B=+—H &x&EBHBILE

HEFEE2,000,000E 7T (ZF
T4 1 2,000,000%7T) FEHER

RVAC )

#915,629,0005&7T) ©

R Y=

(ERIN =

BB IE

iR o

TREIEER
—E2EF+_A=+—HNE
ERBMOKREWERBHRES

BERBREERR ~&£BE
Eiél)ﬁll%?%,jﬂmfufﬁﬁ
SBERREMEERF
REL P UK Bl TR IR SR AR E 1T &) o
o AEBRESREHRES
= X P] IR B & B8 0 B AR
A WK B R IB 1 e 5008 B &S
TERIBEIEE
+TZR=+—H BWERHGE
MANE—SEFZE2EHEFHNRE
BEFBIGRABNRKEE ;

R(iNfERAL9%H E 1T IRAAF

RZF—FR

EBRARER
2021
—EZ—&F

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FAHARSIREE 2 ARE4RE SRR
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
More than 90 days past due  #1HA0K LA k= 100% 15,629 15,629
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HFERRERE @

(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERR @&
Loan receivable (continued) BREZ (5B)
2020
T EE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FERAESIREE X IREAEE B 1R RS
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
More than 90 days past due  #IRAP0K LA E 100% 15,629 15,629
Movement in the loss allowance for loan receivable FRNEWERGEREEZETHN
during the year is as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—F 22
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HB&k+-B=+—H 15,629 15,629
The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to FEETEEZATFES AR
debt investments that are measured at FVTPL. The AENEEREHRBEERR -
maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period RI|BEHR > &5 RBHKORZ
is the carrying amount of these investments of HK$Nil ERERBDES B (ZEZE
(2020: HK$Nil). F 28T o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Deposits and other receivables

The expected loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
management of the Group to assess both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by the management of the Group to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated. In
determining the ECL of the Group's deposits and other
receivables, the management assessed the expected
losses individually by estimation based on historical
credit loss experience, general economic conditions
of the relevant industry in which the debtors operate
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
Based on the result of the foregoing, impairment loss
of HK$1,830,000 (2020: HK$1,600,000) was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Financial guarantee
As at 31 December 2021,

Group has provided a corporate guarantee in respect

the management of the

of a loan facility granted to an associate of the
Group up to an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$204,960,000. At the end of the reporting period,
the Directors have performed impairment assessment,
and concluded that there has been significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
guarantee contract. Accordingly, the loss allowance for
financial guarantee issued by the Group is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL (credit impaired).
As at 31 December 2021, the loss allowance in respect
of the financial guarantee of HK$35,000,000 (2020:
HK$33,000,000) was made in accordance with expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9. Additional allowance
for ECL of approximately HK$2,000,000 was recognised
during the year (2020: HK$7,200,000). Details of the
financial guarantee contract and quantitative disclosures
are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's time deposits, bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities and convertible bonds bear interests
at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair

value interest rate risks.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest-rate risk
arises from its bank balances. These bank balances
bear interests at variable rates that varied with the then

prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate risk has not
been presented as the reasonably possible changes in
market interest rate will not have significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
breached certain covenant clauses in bank and other
borrowings agreement under which the Group was
default on repayment of bank and other borrowings
to lenders. As a result, as at 31 December 2021,
bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$
268,953,000 (2020: HK$260,945,000) is subject to an
early repayment option exercisable by the lenders. Such
bank and other borrowings are classified as a current
liability as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. As the date
on these consolidated financial statements, the lenders
have not requested for the early repayment of the bank

and other borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the maturity
analyses based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities are as

follows:

6. MBREKRERE @
(d) /}llﬁﬁﬁﬂp (“)

B=+—H ERFEEFTE

TRaE
FHASMWT

BHRMBERERNEN

On demand Total
orless than Between1 Between 2 undiscounted  Carrying
1year and 2years and5years  cash flow value
BERY KIH
DRE 1526 2E55F REREMEH fREfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THT THET
At 31 December 2021 gt el
+-A=+-H
Trade payables PR 96,675 - - 96,675 96,675
Other payables and accruals  ELFE( FIE K
Bt &R 229,141 - - 229141 556,225
Interest-bearing bank and ~ &F 2 R1T R Efth
other borrowings (note) B8 (fz2) 797,978 = = 797,978 797,978
Lease liabilities HESE 1,522 1,090 - 2,612 2,390
Financial guarantee IR 35,000 - - 35,000 35,000
At 31 December 2020 —ECEE
+—H S
Trade payables FE(TERAN 3,773 = = 3,773 3,773
Other payables and accruals  ELFE(T FIE K
Bt &R 113,524 - - 113,524 328,301
Interest-bearing bank and ~ F EIRITREME
other borrowings (note) & (D) 638,843 - - 638,843 638,843
Lease liabilities HEaR 1,422 516 = 1,938 1,813
Convertible bonds AR ES 146,616 - - 146,616 143,980
Financial guarantee IR 33,000 - - 33,000 33,000
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note:

Included in the above interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
the Group was a term loan with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$15,306,000 (2020: approximately HK$14,899,000), which contained
a repayment on demand clause giving the bank the right to call
in the loan at any time. Accordingly, for the purpose of the above
maturity profile, the contractual undiscounted payments of such loan
of the Group in the amount of approximately HK$15,306,000 (2020:
approximately HK$14,899,000) were classified as “on demand”.

The bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments were classified as “on demand or less
than 1 year”. The amount includes interest payments including in
other payables computed using contractual rates was approximately

HK$19,209,000 (2020: approximately HK$18,698,000).

Categories of financial instruments at 31
December

6.

HHBRBRERE @

(d)

(e)

uu@]ﬁﬁﬂl‘ (&)
Hiat

AREE4915,306,0008 7T (ZEZ8TF © 4
14,899,000/ 7T) MEHAE st A Lt A&
Ex BERTREMEBE THERB SR
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T WA 4914,899,000587T) DEEA
MREX] o

RBHETRIBRA R EREBIRITEE
BREA TBERK DR — Ejoﬁﬁﬁiéﬁ
BIEREOLERAENNEMHR GTAEM
FE 1 2R IE) 497519,209,0008 0 (2 -2
4 #918,698,000# 7T) °

R+ZA=+—HBNEMIASE
Gl

2021 2020
—gZ—F§ —EIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FAET
Financial assets: EMEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABGNEMEE 12,794 58,632
Financial assets at amortised cost RE#IER AT ENEMEE 87,070 50,160
Financial liabilities: EMaRE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R FHM AT EN TREE 1,123,795 900,120
Financial guarantee AR 35,000 33,000

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.
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7.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AT(EE

ATERRFAEARTHE2EERE
MERXZPHEEEN W EES
BAXMHNER  THLQFEFERR
WATEEBRSAFESEMBRGE
BEBMABED A =EEHR

B ARImARE

B ARmARE

B RMARE

KEBRSEH
MR REET S
ER/SHNERE
ENBRNRE
(CREEHE) -

BRE—REMA
BHREREEN
BRFEZIAME
BEEH AH
e

BEERER/HT
H R A
e

FERNBRERNEHEEERHS
NEBRFEREHEARI%Z=-MBER

R AME L -
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7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

£

December 2021 and 2020:

Fe

ATEEE o

(@ WIZEZ

—F k=

A=+—BNAFEERKE :

Fair value measurements using: Total
RAUTAAHEBATE: Bt
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
fiait 54 BZH B=Hh C—B--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REEQATEANE
measurements:
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFAEBGEDN
EREE
Unlisted equity securities JEEmEmE s - - 12,794 12,794
Total Hst = - 12,794 12,794
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. ATHEE®
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@) MICE-_—SRIE"ZEF1+_
December 2021 and 2020: (continued) B=+—HHATFEERIKE :
(#&
Fair value measurements using: Total
FEAUTAAHEATE ! st
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
g -8 B F=Hh TETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TET
Recurring fair value RECEATESNE:
measurements:
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABGEN
THEE
An unlisted fund investment ~ JEEHESKRE
(note) (3 = i - o
Unlisted equity securities JEL MRS = = 58,632 58,632
Total st - - 58,632 58,632
Note: The unlisted fund investment was fully impaired by the Group st BRELTESREETEERERE
during the year ended 31 December 2020 as the unlisted fund FOBRE_Z_EF+_A=+—
investment was in the process of winding up. ALEFE - AEEHFLTEESR
BFEBBREEE
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7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

£

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities measured

at fair value based on level 3:

7. AFEFE®@®
(b)
& EHE

REF=ZRATEABNEESR

Financial
assets at
Assets FVTPL
BAFES
AfEzEY
BE THEE
Unlisted
equity 2021
Description securities —EF-—&F
JELET™ Total
Fisi 3t s #azt
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T F#T
At 1 January 2021 W2 —F—H—H 58,632 58,632
Fair value loss recognised RIBmERN AT EEE
in profit or loss (46,362) (46,362)
Exchange difference PER R 524 524
At 31 December 2021 AT 4
+-A=+—H 12,794 12,794
Assets Financial assets at FVTPL
BE BATES ABRNEREE
An acquired Unlisted
convertible equity Investment 2020
Description bond securities property -t 25
Bk L Total
i aRES s BEME fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FTET TET
At 1 January 2020 RZ2ZZF—-HF—H 39,091 403,363 237,651 680,105
Fair value gain/(loss) RiBmERN
recognised in profit or loss NFEERE (518 909 (348,322) 1,552 (345,861)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries  #3fFtH & Hi B AT - - (237,971) (237,971)
Reclassified to other receivables  EH A 4EZE H A
FURIE (40,000) - - (40,000)
Exchange difference BRESE - 3,591 (1,232) 2,359
At 31 December 2020 RIBEZEF
+ZB=+—H - 58,632 - 58,632
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7.

5

FE+_A=1T—HLEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value based on level 3: (continued)

Liabilities

&\

AFEFE ®

(b) WEBEE=HKAT
BEHEK: (@

(E 3 ROV EER

Financial
liabilities

at FVTPL
BATER A
BEaNErmas
Derivative
Components
of convertible
bonds

AR ES
THEE D
HK$'000
TAET

A — T —

At 1 January 2020
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss

RiBm

TE—HA—H
1 FESDEY A FE W

\—v—v

1,430
(1,430)

A — T —

At 31 December 2020

\—v—v

TE+_A=+—H -

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets and liabilities held at end of
reporting period are presented in other income, gains
and loss, net in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BET_—

FT_A=T—HLFE

7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs used
in fair value measurements at 31 December 2021:
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are reviewed by the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group has
engaged external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to

perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

NFEE @

0 RIBZ—F+ZA=+—8%F
SEFALERAERATENE
FRAEMEES ZREABBIKE :
AR EEZCTEEMBREMS
WEERBREATESE 81F
BZRATEAB-EFEED
SEMREBRTHREEBRERS
Bo

ME=ZMATEFAEMS T &
B—REZEEEELAREXERK
TR EEERETH
&e

EZMAFEHE

Fair value
AT
2021 2020
ZEZ-§ —EZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T#ET
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
A YRIE
i &ER% FARBHALE ATENTE BE
Unlisted equity
investments:
FELMERRE !
- Zhongxin Asset-based N/A N/A - 4,744
(Heilongjiang) approach 1B (2020: N/A) (2020: N/A)
Internet BEEME TEH 1A
Microfinance (=% S (=% S
Co., Limited* TER) EA)
—H (BRED B
HRNEERE
BAE

*  For identification purposes only
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BRI

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs used

in fair value measurements at 31 December 2021:

(continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

ATEETE @

(i HOR_—FFEA S
SEFRAGERERATENE
FRAEMEES ZREABBIKE :

(uE)
BE=RAFENE (B

Fair value
ATE
2021 2020
—E--& —ECZEg§
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
BAYIEE MH
E:pu fhER* FHERAYE #E - ATENEE BE
— Zuoshishi Income Long term growth rate 3% (2020: 3%) Increase (2020: 11,045 43,266
Technology approach REERE 3% (CEZEF 1 3%) Increase)
Service (Beijing) U A% ®wmnCE_SEF:
Company Y1)
Limited*
EE T Weighted average 13% (2020: 14%) Decrease (2020:
(ER) BERATE cost of capital 13% (ZEZBF . Decrease)
RTISERAA % A CBEE:
HL)
Discount for lack of 16% (2020 16%) Decrease (2020:
marketability 16% (CE_BE: Decrease)
Bz G mEEiTE 16%) B (CEIDE:
)
- Spring Power  Market Market P/S ratio 3.4 (2020: 35.84) Increase (2020: 1,749 10,622
Holdings Limited ~approach & higE 34(CB22E: Increase)
- Spring Power  Ti5% 35.84) BmCE_SE:
Holdings Limited g
*  For identification purposes only
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8.

124

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four operating segments as follows:

1. Car rental segment — primarily engages in the provision

of car rental services;

2. Trading and processing of goods segment — primarily
engages in the trading and processing of furniture
wood mainly red mahogany wood and yellow
sandalwood and other goods;

3. Financing services and investments segment — primarily
engages in money lending business through the

provision of loans and financial investment holding; and

4. Others segment — engages in provision of other
services, such as fund administration, public relations

and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment results, which exclude unallocated interest
income, unallocated other income and gains, unallocated
depreciation, unallocated finance costs as well as corporate
and other unallocated expenses and share of results of joint

ventures.

Segment assets exclude certain financial assets at FVTPL, tax
recoverable, cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis, as well as interests in

joint ventures.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing other borrowings,
derivative financial instruments, convertible bonds, certain tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed

on a group basis.

DERE R
AEE A EEE N T

1. AEHEESB-FBRAFRERHES
BEERES

2. EmBHKRMINE-ETE2HRSF
RMBAMES KRNI EE%
kA ZEAREME M

3. MERBREENH-TEER
RHEMREBEEB RERE
BER &

4. HMDEM-REFRHEMRSE
PIMEEEE - AHBERRYE
BE-

HIEHERDERRRFERE > EIE
BENERAEREEDENES D
BRBFEDBDEATHREDBEEMENT
S EFBERDENBWRA XD
EHEMBA R K@ ROEFTE KD
FRERA  EEREMKDERX
UREBEEERBIEE-

NEHEETBEETRAFES AR
mHEMEE FJREORE RS RIR
THFEY ZRFIBEREMAKDEE
AEAREEEE RESZFIEEHTIU
EEAERMETEEURREGER
Bl A9 o

NHERTEESSHMEE TT1EE
MIA -FIBRESF - ETEORE
EERBEEBUREMARDER AT

htZEaE RABZEAEAHUER
HERMETER-
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B —F+_A=+—HILEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 9ﬁ5§*4 #)
Trading and Financing services
Car rental processing of goods  and investments Others Total
RERE SmEARMI HERBREE Hit i
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z¥C-F T5T3F ZBC-F CSTTE TEC-F CETTF TEC-F TETTR ZEC-E CE1EF
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000  HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr FEm TEx  FEm  TEx  FEm  TEx  FEm TEx
Segment revenue: T
Sales of goods HEER - - 104,406 9,334 - o - - 104,406 9334
Car rental income RERERA M7 1398 - = - 5 - - MATT 13968
Service income RAIA - = - = - = 484 1,002 484 1,002
Revenue Wi A7 13968 104,406 9,334 - - 484 1002 116,067 24304
Segment results PEES (67,029)  (17513) 8597 (348155  (86,859) (349,142  (13,218)  (40,579) (158,509) (755,389)
Reconciliations: HEE
Unallocated interest income FAEHSHA 210 805
Unallocated other income and gains FOREMBAR LG - 1430
Unallocated depreciation on VENE
property, plant and equipment KNEIE (139) (129
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMADRER
expenses (10,611)  (241,451)
Unallocated finance costs PSS (105,278)  (111,54¢)
Share of losses of joint ventures RIEAEARER - (19
Loss before tax RiBIEE (274,327) (1,07371)
Segment assets nHEE 55064 4705 113,274 U 13309 59132 88 75 181735 106610
Reconciliations: HEE
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMKIREE 42,907 56,601
Total assets BELE 204,642 163211
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£

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ﬁﬁBﬁ*—l #)
Trading and Financing services
Car rental processing of goods ~ and investments Others Total
REHE RREARNI HERBRRE At L
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
SEC-F CECRF CESR R DESE R TTF DES-E RO DESE
HK$'000  HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tén TiEn TRn TEx  TEn  TEr | TEm  TEn | TEm TEn
Segment liabilities HHaf 115487 40775 268,667 16211 40,950 3 2,508 2508 427,612 59,557
Reconciliations: HEE
Corporate and other tEREMFARLEE
unallocated liabilities 1,060,849 1,090,153
Total liabilities BRER 1,488,461 1,149,710
Other segment information: HthREER
Finance costs BERK 2,724 2,049 = 2 = - 9128 6532 12,452 8583
Depreciation on property, nE BERRENE
plant and equipment 5325 6877 - - - - 139 16 5464 679
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRREENE 1,052 690 116 - - - - 814 1,168 1,504
Impairment of right-of-use assets PREEEAE 244 300 - - - - - - 244 300
Impairment of intangible assets BREENE 7,462 9,166 S 5 S = = - 1462 9,166
Capital expenditure EARY 18,173 6,096 = = = = = - 18173 6,09
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The United States

2021 2020 2021

The PRC
28 48

8. NIEF @

Hong Kong Others Total
E Aft it

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

SRC-F CECREISSF CECRECSC-F CROTEDRC-F ECTHE DRC-E CRIF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Téx TErn TR TEr TRz TEx  TEm  ThEn | TEm @ TEn
Revenue from external customers  REIMNIE ARG - - 116,067 15713 - 8,591 - - 116067 24304
Non-current assets FTEEE - 10622 61,616 92,829 430 58 - - 62,046 103,509
Non-current assets ERBEE
(excluding financial instruments) (BBTARND - - 48822 4819 430 58 - - 49252 877

Revenue from major customers REXERFHWE

Revenues from customers of corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

REEBEMNERB@EGEAERE
WEHERI10% U EEWTF -

as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFAET
Customer A EZRA 40,336 =
Customer B =FB 18,850 =
Customer C ZRC - 5,500
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9. REVENUE 9. Uz
Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers by FNRBEZERIBBLRNELEN
major products or service line for the year is as follows: Wl T
2021 2020
—Z-—F B BHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue 1§
Contracts with customers within the REBUFHRE R 1558
scope of HKFRS 15: BLEANETAEL !
Sales of goods HES M 104,406 9,334
Service income ARFE U 484 1,002
104,890 10,336
Other sources: HAth R :
Car rental income AEBEEERA 11,177 13,968
116,067 24,304
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and 7 £5 [ B9 LT 3 2ROTR 7 B 8 B RS R e 7S
services at a point in time and over time in the following —EBREBEUATEIEERG R EE
major product line and geographical regions: B EmRARTS .
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T THTT
Time of revenue recognition: o R A RFRE
At a point in time 7 E B ) B4 104,406 9,334
Over time SRR B R 484 1,002
104,890 10,336
Geographical market: MEH -
The PRC FRE 104,890 1,745
Hong Kong 5 - 8,591
104,890 10,336
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10. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND (LOSSES),

10. EMUA Uz R (§548) 328

NET
2021 2020
—B-—£F —ETEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FEIT
Other income Hthg A
Bank interest income IRITR EWA 2 18
Other interest income HR EWA 322 800
Waiver of amount due to a joint venture ~ EAREN—HE&E A BIHIE - 48
Others Hh 19 1,495
343 2,361
Gains and (losses), net Wi B (B518) ;258
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - -BERREEE
plant and equipment, net BES 18348 (2,177) (2,350)
Fair value gain on investment REMENATFE
property W= = 1,552
Fair value loss on financial assets BAFEFF ABmNER
at FVTPL BERATERBE (46,362) (347,413)
Fair value gain on derivative financial ARG S ITTE
instruments in relation to ETHRTEAFE
convertible bonds U = 1,430
Impairment of an unlisted fund investment 3F F &SRB HE (10,941)
Gain on termination of leases, net FHEZRIE W FRE 1,662
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries ~ fR{EHEMIE A B K5I8 = (21,293)
(48,535) (377,353)
(48,192) (374,992)
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11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MBS
2021 2020
—E—&% 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHE 229 471
Interest on bank and other borrowings IRTAREMEERE 109,397 44,328
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESFE 8,048 75,255
Bank charges RITFES 56 75
117,730 120,129
12. LOSS BEFORE TAX 12. BRIEAIRSIE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBMZBRMATGEENR (ER)
(crediting): DUF&IE
2021 2020
—EgE-—& —ETFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT TFET
Cost of inventories sold HEFEEMA 95,467 9,162
Depreciation on property, MEBEREEITE
plant and equipment (note a) (Htz%a) 5,464 6,793
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERESETE
(note a) (Hizta) 1,168 1,504
Auditor’'s remuneration TZ B EMBN &
— audit services —IZ AR TE 1,070 1,000
- non-audit services —IERZEAR TS 186 118
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HE_Z

12.

——EtCB=t—BLEE

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 12. BRIERIESHE @
2021 2020
—E_—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET TFAT
Employee benefit expenses RERHFHX
(including directors’ emoluments): (BEIEESM=) !
Wages, salaries, allowances, T&E s 28
bonuses and benefits in kind TEAKREYH = 4,084 15,098
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEMERR
(defined contribution schemes) (EzEMt=ETE)
(note b) (HizEb) 261 1,019
4,345 16,117
Exchange losses, net PE 58 %8R 9 3
Fair value gain on derivative AR ESERTTE
financial instruments in relation EMTERAFERT
to convertible bonds (note ¢) (H13#c) = (1,430)
Fair value loss on financial AT EFABZN
assets at FVTPL (hote c) TMEBEATERSIE
(Bfate) 46,362 347,413
Fair value gain on investment KEMELTE
property (note c) Wzt (ffatc) = (1,552)
Impairment of an unlisted fund investment 3F F &SR ERE
(note ¢) (fate) - 10,941
Allowances for ECLs on trade FEW AR TR B A5 18
receivables B 1,020 347,104
Reversal of allowance for ECLs FEWER R TEIAE B E518
on trade receivables BE RO - (400)
Allowances for ECLs on other receivables HAEWNFIENTELREE
B 1EEE 1,830 1,600
Provision for financial guarantee SRS 2,000 7,200
Provision for claims (note e) REEHR B (Hate) 93,949 200,000
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note o)  EREEERM(E (f32d) 244 300
Impairment of intangible assets mILEERE Bite)
(note e) 7,462 9,166
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12. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 12. BRIRATRSHE @

2021 2020

25 T _TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T F

Write-off of inventories (note e) FEME Hate) - 3,320
Write-off of property, plant and Y3 ~ BRI e 58 I 3H

equipment (note e) (Htzte) 35 10
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 1R {EHH &M EA B E1E

(note c) (H1z#c) - 21,293

Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYME BEREZEBEEEN

plant and equipment, net (note c) E51873%8 (Hatc) 2,177 2,350

Gain on termination of leases, net (note ¢/ &K IFUNEF48 (Hfatc) (4) (1,662)

Notes: B E -

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use (a) ME - - BMEESEURGTAHAEESEINEYN
assets of approximately HK$5,195,000 (2020: HK$6,463,000) and 5,195,000 (ZE " T £ : 6,463,000
HK$1,052,000 (2020: HK$361,000) are included in cost of sales and B7C) 21,052,000 T (ZE_8F
services rendered. 361,000587T) Bt AHE Al A R IRHBIAR

F5o

(b) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no forfeited (b) RIE_—EFER_E_FEF+_B=+—
contributions available to reduce its contributions to its pension H > 7 £ B 3 808 UM R AT 4 HY O E R 3k
schemes in future years. FEHERAESEELNMRC

() The amount is included in other income, gains and (losses), net. (c) ESBEFAEMBA Y WE K (B518)

R
(d) The amount is included in administrative expenses. (d) BRSBEEATHRER-
(e) The amount is included in other expenses. (e) EREBEEsT AEMMASE -

x32
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_B_—SF+_A=+—HLEE

13. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S REMUNERATION

EERBEFENTEFM

2021 2020

—E-—% T RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Fees wE 652 2557

Other emoluments: HMEE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET] - 1,461
Pension scheme contributions BB B

(defined contribution scheme) (EZEMHFRETED - 35

- 1,496

652 4,253

FAMEBEEFRRENE T HEE
T2 HEe

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

BIERITES

(@) Independent non-executive directors (a)

FRNENREBNBIFERNTES

The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows: HEEWT
2021 2020
—E-—F B
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FHTT
Dr. Guan Huanfei (resigned on FRIEELT (W22 F
15 May 2020) A B+HBED - 49
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (resigned ~ ERBESLE M2 ZEF
on 27 July 2020) tHAZ+t+HED - 70
Mr. Zhao Xianming RS E 120 120
An Dong (appointed ZRELE (RZZBEF
on 12 March 2020) =“A+-B%EZD) 120 96
Mr. Fung Tsz Wa (appointed on BFERE (R -FF
15 May 2020 and resigned on AR THEBEEZERK
31 December 2020) N _E_EF+A
=+—H&D - 75
Mr. Wan Man Wah (appointed on BXESRE (R —F
31 March 2021 and resigned on —A=+—HEZFL
8 December 2021) N —F+"H
J\BBHE) 82 -
Mr. So Yin Wai (appointed on 23 BERSE (R _—F
December 2021) TR +=HEZMD) - s
322 410

There were no other emolument payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2020: Nil).
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BB ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEB_—FT_A=+—HLEE

-

134

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and

13. EEREEHNTEFTFN @

b) BITEZR -FRTEFRREFRIT

the chief executive officer B
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fee in kind contributions remuneration
2Nk
ik BNET  BAEHEHR FiaaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT FHERT FHET
2021 ZBZ-F
Executive director: HiTEE:
Mr. Lyu NingJiang (appointed on ~ BE15%t4
3 December 2020) (Chief (R-B_EFE+-RA=
Executive Officer) HEZMD)
[BEEHITE) 165 - - 165
165 - - 165
Non-executive director: FHITEE:
Mr. Hu YongGang (appointed PARIRE (R-B-2E
on 3 December 2020) +-BZREZD 165 - - 165
165 - - 165
330 - - 330
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_B_—SF+_A=+—HLEE

BRI

13. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S REMUNERATION (continued)

EEREFEHITEEHMN @

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) BMITEZ -IFRTEFEREENT
the chief executive officer (continued) E @
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fee in kind contributions remuneration
e 2R
ik EMEN  BRAESHEET H4azs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TER TET
2020 - 55
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Ms. Tung Shun (resigned on Byt (RZ222R
12 March 2020) ZB+-HED 900 - 9 909
Ms. Chen Xiaohang (resigned o BEEEf% &
15 May 2020) (RZZZZFRA+E
HEH{D 900 - 9 909
Mr. Qiu Bin (appointed on BREE (RZE-FE
12 March 2020 and resigned _H ‘|’ BERER
on 3 December 2020) “22ZF+CH
= El #HI) 258 1,461 1 1,730
Ms. Sin Pui Ying (appointed on RRERE
15 May 2020 and resigned on (R-ZZZFRATE
24 August 2020) E%EE’Z
7 —% E}\ﬁ
_+lEﬁ¥E) 166 = 6 172
Mr. Lyu NingJiang (appointed on B 154
3 December 2020) (Chief (R-E-2E+"F=
Executive Officer) HEZD)
(BERHTE) 19 - - 19
2,243 1,461 35 3,739
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (appointed BEERE (R-F
on 1 April 2020 and resigned TEMA—REZE
on 24 August 2020) &EAf Z_ZE\R
Z+IEED) 95 = - 95
Mr. Hu YongGang (appointed PARIEE (R-B_BF
on 3 December 2020) +-B=HEZD) 9 = = 9
104 - - 104
2,347 1,461 35 3,843

(c¢) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transaction,
arrangement and contract in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the directors’
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.
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B HEIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

s

14.

136

B A=T—HILEE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one (2020: three) director(s), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 13 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining four (2020: two) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor the chief executive
officer of the Company are as follows:

14.

hAaEEHNES

Ep ARBRBHNERRE—2 (C
ToDE DR EE RENHHEE
B EXMEE13 FR HEpME (C
ToTE @) FAANEETRNER
HITENRSHESNHFM=BOT :

2021 2020
-5 TECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex TFAET

Salaries, allowances, bonuses e R TEAREYEFR
and benefits in kind 2,131 1,206

Pension scheme contributions BRIRE B

(defined contribution scheme) (EREMHRETE) 72 15
2,203 1,221

During the year, there was no discretionary bonus paid or
payable to any directors or five highest paid employee of the
Group.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

FR AEERBEENHENTFEM
EXENALRSHEENEBIEA-

HMNF TIEENFESER
ERNAHNMT :

= B

Number of employees

EEAHY
2021 2020
—E-—F TEITE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FET
Below HK$1,000,000 {E£#%1,000,000% 7T 4 2

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no amount (2020:
Nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 14
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the both years.

REE_Z_—F+_B=+—HIt
FEE AERRMEEINIENTES

WM EVAPRENERA LGRS FHAE
EBRMEA(CZZF B (FRNALE

B S AN A BT Y B2 Bh S 1F A BE R A 1 o
RMEEERN BEEERENRAETX
REMMELHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"E

|5

——EtCB=t—BLEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

15. FRiS#RR% ~ (E%)

2021 2020
—E-—fF TEBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FH7T
Current — PRC B — R
Charge for the year FANRHZ 218 =
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBETRE - 121
Deferred tax (note 35) IEIERR (MYEE35) 15 (43,073)
Income tax expense/(credit) FR8MRY, (&%) 233 (42,952)
Under the two-tiered profits rates regime, the HK$2 million of EMBEIFEREET > GERE

profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
the flat rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
25% based on the assessable profit in accordance with the
tax rules and regulations in the PRC (2020: 25%).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

Under the PRC tax law, dividends received by foreign
investors from its investment in foreign-invested enterprises
in respect of its profits earned since 1 January 2008 are

subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax, and any other tax has
been provided in the consolidated financial statement (2020:
Nil).
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RIE P ERF AR KA REEBER
MiEH o PEEEASRE25%IRE
(Z2TZHF 1 25%) stiRE®E -

H {3 (& FE 3R 77 s F1) AU AR TR B 52 75 %
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

s

1D

16.

138

T R B — A —HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

The reconciliations between the income tax (expense)/credit

15¢

FRiSHR ~ (E%) @
FriSH (W) /18 R RE R AT

and the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong BRUABEBACERNENFER BN
Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows: HIROT ¢
2021 2020
—2_—F —BTER
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Loss before tax PRIR AR 18 (274,327) (1,107,371)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBFERNE16.5%
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (CBTEF 1165%) 58
AR IE (45,264) (182,716)
Effect of difference in tax rate/tax rule BERLNAEE I E MR
for specific jurisdiction or enacted MEBETARMNRE
by local tax authority MR & (13,688) (15,953)
Tax effect of losses attributable to joint BERBKR—EHEAT
ventures and an associate FEIEES BB R & = 180
Tax effect of utilisation of STRIARFERIRIEE S
tax losses prior not recognised ERNREEE (1,144) 79)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BEFRNANRBEE (702) (681)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RAIHNRFEZ N FEFE
tax 28,100 76,456
Tax losses not recognised REESRIRIEES 18 32,931 79,728
Under provision in prior years BEFERERE = 121
Others Hih = (8)
Income tax expense/(credit) FRSMpEY, (&%) 233 (42,952)
DIVIDENDS 16. HQIE\
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLHF

December 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2020: Nil).

Eiﬂ%;ﬂ‘ﬂ:—:E/)ENJZLE%AETTJE’\JHQE\ B

iHHEELXJUT%LE%?)ENE@HQ% (=
TS

7y
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

7

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$274,550,000 (2020: HK$1,055,985,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
342,572,857 (2020: 341,399,481) in issue during the year.

During the year, no adjustment had been made to the basic
loss per share amounts presented in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based

17. ZxAEHEB AELSKREE

SREAGEDREAATHE AR
{EERNEIE49274,550,0008 7T (=
— &4 1 1,055,985,00087T) REARE
FEITE @R N T 198342,572,857
B (C T Z4 1 341,399,4810%) 5t &

RAFE > WEREENMES 28R
EXRBRERFLHAR RASEHT
FHNZBEREERRIZENAEAE
EF2IZ28RETEREREER

BREFSKRBEBENGEDER !

on:
2021 2020
—E-—F “ERTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ sTE&SREAR K #E
of the Company used in the basis and BEERANEAATER A
diluted loss per share calculation: AL FERESE - (274,550) (1,055,985)
Number of shares
HER
2021 2020
—g-—& —z-=&
Shares B {7
Weighted average number of ordinary BNt EEREARKES
shares in issue during the year used in BIENAFEDET
the basic and diluted loss per TiERRINE TR
share calculation 342,572,857 341,399,481
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEB_—FT_A=+—HLEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. Y13 BB KR=&iH

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor
equipment improvements vehicles Total
Fif%E
RikfE Hg&E RE iz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET TET FET
Cost R
At 1 January 2020 RZE-Z&—-HF—H 2,057 S 34,758 36,815
Additions RE 191 106 3,831 4,128
Disposals HE 21 - (24,474) (24,495)
Write-off i (10) - - (10)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries 1R {EHEHBAE] (752) = = (752)
Exchange difference ERER 98 6 1,274 1,378
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-ZHE+_-"A=+—H
1 January 2021 R_B-_—%—A—H 1,563 112 15,389 17,064
Additions RE = = 18,173 18,173
Disposals HE - - (4,840) (4,840)
Write-off (6 (158) - - (158)
Exchange difference bR = 42 3 693 738
At 31 December 2021 RZB-—#+-A=+-H 1,447 115 29,415 30,977
Accumulated depreciation RiHrE
At 1 January 2020 RZE"TF—-HF—H 1,232 = 12,887 14,119
Charge for the year FRES 299 31 6,463 6,793
Disposals HE (18) - (16,462) (16,480)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries ~ R{EHEHTEAE] (584) = = (584)
Exchange difference R = 68 2 404 474
At 31 December 2020 and _V_VETL HEJF H
1 January 2021 _E_—-F—-A— 997 33 3,292 4,322
Charge for the year EWF;;EJi 212 57 5,195 5,464
Disposals HE - - (2,130) (2,130)
Write-off (6 (123) - - (123)
Exchange difference R = 4 2 407 450
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+"A=1+—H 1,127 92 6,764 7,983
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-f+-B=+—-H 320 23 22,651 22,994
At 31 December 2020 RIZ2ZZHE+ZA=+—H 566 79 12,097 12,742
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"E

18.

19.

——EtCB=t—BLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group's motor vehicles are identified to be part of the
car-rental cash-generating unit. During the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, no impairment was made on the
property, plant and equipment since the recoverable amount
of the Group's property, plant and equipment is higher than
its carrying amount. Details of the impairment testing are set

out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. M% R E K& E @)

AEEZABDHNASSEEHERE
ELEBUZHBR -BE_T—Fk=
EEFES+"A=+—HILEEE #HR
AEBZYE BERRBHN WO S
BEENHKREE #YME -BEARE
B 5T 1R R {E © A B AU E R SRV 5T 15 &
PRARG M B AM sE21

19. FHEEE

Leased motor Leased

vehicles properties Total

HESE HEYE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T#T T#T T#x

At 1 January 2020 RIZEZZF—HF—H 1,200 1,560 2,760
Additions NE 589 1,519 2,108
Depreciation e (361) (1,143) (1,504)
Termination of leases RIETEE (556) (1,555) (2,111)
Impairment /JEME (300) - (300)
Exchange difference ERELR 42 23 65

At 31 December 2020 and ATETEE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—8x

“E—F%—H—H 614 404 1,018

Additions NE 2,141 459 2,600
Depreciation wE (1,052) (116) (1,168)
Termination of leases KIS = (340) (340)
Impairment BB (244) = (244)
Exchange difference bE R =28 30 11 4

At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F

+ZB=+—H 1,489 418 1,907
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

s

19.

142

B A=T—HILEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$2,390,000 (2020:
HK$1,813,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$1,907,000 (2020: HK$1,018,000) as at
31 December 2021. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.

19. EREEE @

N_EZ—H+"HA=+—H %
HE&E42,390,0008 T (CE =
£ 11,813,000 t) > HREAFERES
E#7%A1,907,0008 5 (ZE-_2F .
1,018,000/ 7T) FREBARENES
BETHNEFRERI  BEHE N
FRHEMZE HEESEFCSARNEE
HlRo

Hi

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRESETE 1,168 1,504
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESENESRX
(included in finance costs) (Bt ARRE B ) 229 471
Expenses relating to short-term lease ~ ¥2ERTE EMERAMS
(included in costs of sales and services (5t ATHE RIBMHARF B AL A&
rendered and administrative expenses) M &ITE & F) 4,497 4,759
Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 39(c) EHEERERHBBHEFBEINES
to the consolidated financial statements. B R R MIEE39(c) ©

For both years, the Group leases various offices and motor
vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 2 years to 3 years (2020: 2 years to 3.2
years), but may have extension and termination options as
described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.

RMER ~EBEEZARLERS
WAEFREKCEZH - HESNEITN
EEMRA2EEIFE (CEZF 126
E3F) - MR SERA T HAERRALE
EEE-AEHEERER LW
B E R ERE BRI AR - REE
HERRFEATHERENRER
FEERAGNNERLEESAR
SEHIMATHIRAR o
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BE

19.

20.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there has
been no such triggering event.

The Group's right-of-use assets are identified to be part of
the car-rental cash-generating unit. Please refer to note 21 for

the details of impairment assessment.

19. EREEE @

s BBEBREMFIABAZERE
BEARNBEREEERETR  AEET
ENTGERS G EMEETELER
EER-8F T _—ER-T_TF
TRA=+—HLEE HEILBEE
Ffke

AEBZERHEESELHNAAER
ERTcES BN 3D - BREBET
1HEE15 0 s 2 M sE21 0

GOODWILL 20. FH&
2021 2020
—E_—F i s
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T TFHET
Cost 5% 3
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HBEr+ZB=+—H 24,939 24,939
Accumulated impairment losses RetimEsE
At 1 January and 31 December n—B—Br+ZE=+—H (24,939) (24,939)

Carrying amount IRMEE
At 1 January and 31 December iR—

A—BE+ZA=+—H

Goodwill acquired through a business combination was

allocated to the car rental cash-generating unit.

The goodwill was fully impaired in the prior years and
accordingly no further impairment assessment was performed
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEB_—FT_A=+—HLEE

i

144

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BCEE
Vehicle rental
Licence business
plates licence Total
REMA
Hig E ¥4 4a%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHAT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2020 N_E-ZF—HF—H 14,528 46,376 60,904
Exchange difference ERELE 967 3,088 4,055
At 31 December 2020 and RIZEZEF+Z/A=+—H
1 January 2021 —£_—F—H—H 15,495 49,464 64,959
Exchange difference EREZE 424 1,353 1,777
At 31 December 2021 W_E2_—H+"HB=+—H 15,919 50,817 66,736
Accumulated impairment losses R ERSE
At 1 January 2020 RIZZTEF—F—H 5,404 17,252 22,656
Impairment during the year FENRE 2,186 6,980 9,166
Exchange difference ERER 490 1,565 2,055
At 31 December 2020 and RIZEZEF+"A=+—H
1 January 2021 rRZEZ—F—H— 8,080 25,797 33,877
Impairment during the year FRNFIE 1,780 5,682 7,462
Exchange difference EREE 249 797 1,046
At 31 December 2021 RW_E_—F+"B=+—H 10,109 32,276 42,385
Carrying amount BRE{E
At 31 December 2021 RW_E2_—H5+"HB=+—H 5,810 18,541 24,351
At 31 December 2020 R_E_ZE+_"_HA=+—H 7,415 23,667 31,082
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21.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The license plates and vehicle rental business license with
indefinite useful lives were acquired through a business
combination and were allocated to the car rental cash-
generating unit for impairment testing. The license plates
have no expiry dates and the vehicle rental business license
is valid till 21 April 2023. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group will be able to continuously renew the

vehicle rental business license at minimal costs.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of car rental cash-generating unit, in particular to the
intangible assets, at the and of the reporting period, having
regard to the market conditions of the Group's services.
These intangible assets are allocated to the Group's car
rental segment. Impairment losses of license plates and
vehicle rental business license amounted to approximately
HK$1,780,000 (2020: HK$2,186,000) and HK$5,682,000
(2020: HK$6,980,000) have been recognised in profit or
loss during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively. The recoverable amount of approximately
HK$7,225,000 (2020: HK$33,969,000) for the relevant assets
has been determined on value-in-use based on future cash
flow projections using income approach. The discount rate
and the terminal rate used were 14% (2020: 14%) and 2%
(2020: 2%) respectively.

4
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AEBEEZEEAEBRBENTHNK
MoHBERARAEHEREELE
il (CEHREFEE) WA KE&EE
TTHS 2EEREENRELE
ENSERES E-HE_ZT - —
FRIBEZEZEF+ZA=+—HIE
FE CERRAEHAAERERNE
EE1E41,780,000B T (ZE S
12,186,000 7T) K5,682,00078 T
(ZZB_ZT4 6,980,000 7T) BESD
AIRBERPER BRAEEN AU
+ 847,225,000 5 (ZE T F .
33,969,000787T) IRIFERKIRERETR
BliZEREERABWAEERE - Eﬁﬁa
WEERELOREDR214% (ZZ2Z
B D 14%) 2% (T2 ZEFE 12%) ©
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B A=T—HILEE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 22. H—EBEATN#E R
2021 2020
—E—%F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FABT

Unlisted investment ELHKE

Share of net liabilities FEEaEFEE 129,735 129,735
Loans to an associate m—EBEATER (129,735) (129,735)

The loans to an associate are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, these loans are considered as part

of the Group's net investment in the associate.

Particulars of the associate as at 31 December 2021 are as

follows:
Place of
Particulars of incorporation/
issued shares registration
Name held and business
FRrFE 8Ty SEMMmiIthds
8 H15 SE R 5 ith BE

m—EBERATNERAERF - RER
WEEEERP -AADEEBR/ZE
ERBRAETERBRZBEAT IR
E—51n

ZHERBNRN _ZE_—F+ =1
:+—E|ZE¥|E§ZD—F-

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the Principal
Group (%) activity
A L@ R
FRrE#B (%) FBEERH

King Focus International  Ordinary shares ~ The BVI/Hong Kong

Limited ("King Focus") &% BBEREE B
SRBEIRBRAE
(&%)

The Group's shareholding in the associate comprises equity
shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the voting power of King
Focus, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group is
able to exercise significant influence over the significant financial and
operation decisions over the entity as one out of three directors of King
Focus was designated by the Company.

14*  Investment holding
(2020: 14%) REER

14*
“ETEF 14

AEERZBEATDNERECEE
BEARNEZENBASMEAENER

vl

* BEAEERAERIFNREEDN20%
EAADEERR FEBAEENHZE
BHNEAMBREERRTEEATLE

REFR=-UEFNHP—(IHERAFME

=

TE o
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22.

——EtCB=t—BLEE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table shows the Group's share of the amounts
of the immaterial associate that is accounted for using the
equity method.

22. M—HEBEATNER @

TRETEAEDZAGFENEERR
LIFEEHE AT TR

2021 2020
—EZ-F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET

At 31 December ®+=B=+—H
Carrying amounts of interests FEREE

For the year ended 31 December #ZE+-B=+—HLEE

Loss for the year FRFE

Loss and total comprehensive income  E51E Kk 2 E U A 4EEE

The Group has not recognised loss for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounting to approximately HK$Nil (2020:
HK$Nil) for the associate. As at 31 December 2021, the
accumulated losses not recognised were approximately
HK$7,561,000 (2020: HK$7,561,000).

BHE_T”-_—F+-HA=+—HIHF
B zﬁ%@ﬁt MENBEAREREBIENS
EET(CZIZSF BT oNIE
_—fﬁ‘f’_ﬁ:‘f’—a RAESDH R 5t
B84 47,561,000 (CEZTHF .
7,561,000 7T) ©
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

148

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. BMAF(EStAR

mAERMEE

2021 2020
—2_—F ZBTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FH7T
Non-current financial assets EEARAFEAEER
designated at FVTPL JEREERMEE
An unlisted fund investment (note b) —IBIF EHESHRE (Mztb) - =
Unlisted equity investments (note c) JEEmERTE (i) 12,794 58,632
12,794 58,632
Current financial assets designated ¥5E&EATET AEEHN
at FVTPL MEBETMEE
An acquired convertible bond (note a) —IEEUFERT#GES (Mizta) - -
Notes: B EE
(a) An acquired convertible bond (a) —IEBUNFERTIRERMES

On 13 April 2017, the Company subscribed for a convertible
bond (“Acquired Convertible Bond"”) with a principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 which was issued by Bartha International Limited (the
"Bond lIssuer”), an independent third party incorporated in Hong
Kong. The maturity date of the Acquired Convertible Bond is 7 April
2020.

The Acquired Convertible Bond is convertible into shares of the Bond
Issuer at the option of the Company at any time commencing from the
date of issue and up to and including the 10th day prior to the date
of maturity. Exact number of shares to be issued upon conversion will
depend on the total number of shares of the Bond Issuer at the time
of conversion and the amount of the Acquired Convertible Bond to be
converted into shares. The Acquired Convertible Bond carries interest at
a rate of 2.0% per annum, which is payable annually.

Upon its maturity date, none of the principal amount of the
HK$40,000,000 of the Acquired Convertible Bond has been converted
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Acquired Convertible
Bonds. The Bond Issuer fails to repay the outstanding principal amount
and the interest accrued despite receiving repeated notices and
demand letters from the Group. A winding up petition was filed against
the Bond Issuer by the Company in the High Court of Hong Kong on 15
June 2020.

The Group and the Bond Issuer entered into a mediation agreement
dated 9 February 2021 as further supplemented on 9 March 2021
pursuant to which (i) the Group agreed to extend the repayment due
date of the outstanding principal of HK$40,000,000 and accrued
interest of HK$1,600,000 of the Acquired Convertible Bond to 7 April
2022; and (i) the Group further agreed to withdraw the winding up
petition against the Bond Issuer immediately following the receipt of
partial settlement of HK$5,000,000 from the Bond Issuer. During the
year, the Group had received a sum of HK$5,000,000 from the Bond
Issuer.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT

RIE—tEMNBE+=B > ERE
HREBEMMIIMWBEILSE =S Bartha
International Limited (M&% 84T A1) Frét
1T & % %40,000,0008 TH AR EH
<FE.1|&H§‘H§HS1*#J> BURE AR E
FHEHAA S ZFNA+LH.

ARABAINETHREERAEAE108
(BiE%ZH) BRIEZESHE RERRRE
FREFETANRDG BIRRKETH
BERMNBERRILESFETANERE
B9 BR 17 48 B e i 3 3 75 B 10 B B W B T
RESHBER - BEWEIRKRESZENX
20%:t B FEBABEX(T-

FEA R 12 > B A £ 86 440,000,00058 7089
BWEIRMRESRESWBIRRES
R ETBR BELAEEAZR
Wi ) 38 R0 e A A8 BR > R 35 B 4T AR AE
BREEFSBEKEAFES N2 _-F
ERABTHEBR AABEREBESEER
REHEESETANBREER-

SEBMBEBSETAGIHHEAZSTZ
FZAENBNRERRE RS —F=
AHABRE—SER)  BILOHEERR
EREKBIMKEESNAREELSS
40,000,00078 7T K F& 5t 71 £ #51,600,00078
THEMRIPREERE S " —_FNA+t
B RiVANERE—FTRABRETWIGES S
7 ABIER 73 3 FX5,000,00058 T8 17 BN =]
HEBEFETANERES TR AEE
B YR 5k B & %5 817 A #95,000,0005% 7T
I5o
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

(b)

(c)

23. MAF(EStAR

mAERBEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (€=))
Notes: (continued) MIsE : (48)
An unlisted fund investment (b) —IEELHEERE
On 26 May 2018, the Group subscribed for an unlisted fund investment RIEBE—NFERAZ+, B xEBEMN
at a cost of HK$100,000,000, representing 100,000 fund units out of the 100,000,000 8 tRE—EIF LHES
total 300,000 fund units. & HEREH300,000@E2EMNTH
100,0001@ & & B {if
For investment included in the unlisted fund, in the absence of quoted Mt AFLTESHNREMS ELER
market prices in active markets, the fair value of this investment under ERBTIBMERmENER T ERIET
Level 2 is estimated by making reference to quoted prices from pricing ZREZATEDNENRFELTEESRESR
services based on the net asset value of the unlisted fund investment. EFELSETERB ZREERMGHT
Fe
The unlisted investment fund was put into official liquidation by RIB-_EBF+—AB+H ZFLTERE
shareholders on 10 November 2020. Having informed by the joint %%EEHX?IET@% R-B-SH+Z
official liquidators so appointed on 9 December 2020 that the assets AnB SEHMEEZENHBERNSE
held by the unlisted investment fund is of low to no realisable value, ANER ZELTREESMFEEEN
and therefore the balance of the investment was fully impaired during TQEEFTEETE rﬁ%?j'@%K'ﬁ HIRE
the year ended 31 December 2020. HERRBE_E_FEF+_”"_A=+—HL
fﬁf?’ﬁ%lﬂl@°
Unlisted equity investments () FEEHEZRE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Unlisted equity investments (note iv) JEEmE=RE (Mativ)
Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet e (283T) BM4R/)\EEE =
Microfinance Co., Ltd.* (note i) BRAT) (f5H) = 4,744
Zuoshishi Technology Service (Beijing) MEBERERE bR 5RAT
Company Limited* (note ii) (B i) 11,045 43,266
Spring Power Holdings Limited (note iii) Spring Power Holdings Limited ({&%iii) 1,749 10,622
12,794 58,632

*  For identification purposes only
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

150

(c)

Unlisted equity investments (continued)

@

(ii)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has 2% of the
issued share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the

PRC principally engaged in internet microfinance business.

In the current year, the management engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to determine the fair value of this
investment by applying the asset-based approach. Under the
asset-based approach, the fair value of this investment refers to
the fair values of various assets and liabilities on the statement
of financial position of the investment as at the valuation date
with reference to publicly available information of comparable

companies.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had 11% of the
issued share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the
PRC principally engaged in the innovation service for start-up

technology companies and related investment activities.

In the current year, the management engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to determine the fair value of this
investment by applying the income approach. The income
approach measures the value of this investment by the present

value of its future economic benefits.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had 2.9% of
the issued share capital of an unlisted company incorporated
in the BVI. The investee is an investment holding company,
with a major subsidiary, Hanson Robotics Limited, engaged in

development and manufacture of humanlike robots.

In the current year, the management engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to determine the fair value of
this investment. The valuer adopted the market approach to
determine the valuation parameters derived from market prices
and financial data of listed companies in a similar business and
with a similar business model as that of the company being

valued for the equity interest in this unlisted company.

The fair values of these unlisted equity investments are measured
using valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs and
hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Details of the valuation are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.

()
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24.

25.

INVENTORIES 24. 6
2021 2020
—E-—fF R F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Merchandise [l 70,457 6,497

At the end of reporting period, the inventories were stated at
cost.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

R|RERR > FERMAETER

25. FEURBRTR

2021 2020

—E-—%F S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Trade receivables &R BR =X 867,318 833,829
Less: Allowance for ECLs (note) B AR E BB EEE (D) (834,118) (832,873)
33,200 956

As at 31 December 2021, the allowance for ECLs in respect
of the trade receivables was HK$834,118,000 (2020:
HK$832,873,000).

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit with credit period generally ranging from 30
days, or could be longer under certain circumstances. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. Overdue trade receivables are interest-
bearing.

The Group generally does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's other
borrowings were secured by the Group’s pledged trade
receivables of gross amount approximately HK$600,639,000
(2020: HK$600,639,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R _E_—F+-A=+—H0"F
FEWERESRNBHEEEBEEER
#834,118,000B T (ZE &% !
832,873,00037T) ©

AERARERTBEREESATILE
ZIER EER—RNAFI0KR EHERH
BRTAEER AEBBNEERERE
BHARWRS -SREEAEEERE
BN ERR c BAAEIIR R AT R

A5 B — AR 5 i H B WOAR RS BRI
BEMERRIEMEERAY B
BRRABRER e

A BT —F+ /A =+—H & &
[E#9600,639,00078 70 B FE U AR TR 48 5B
(ZEZEH : 600,639,000/ T) &
HYPARERETHEMEEFERFRC

—Eo—aE% 5]
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BE_ST_—F+__HA=1+—HILEE
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEURBRTR s
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice RIFEEEB R IR (IDFREH)
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: BERER DATUD T ¢
2021 2020
—E——f T EF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FEx TFAE7T
Within 90 days 90K™A 33,200 195
90 to 180 days 90F 180K - 761
Over 180 days 180K £ - -
Total “Est 33,200 956
26. LOAN RECEIVABLE 26. EIWERR
2021 2020
—g-—-F —E_2HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex TFET
Loan receivable R ER 15,629 15,629
Less: Allowance for ECLs o FERRE B IE A (15,629) (15,629)
Current portion BIHAER - -

BBy A —RBILERAEL I
LOERANE—EEL2EHEART
HEFERABREER ; R(i)ER
AN49%HY B 31T R AR HLIR - FEUWE =X
BEFK15%5t R ﬁ%fHHBEQTﬁ‘E%EI
HEsSI8ERER —T—NE=A
—+—HEH- {EITA)\E;E/Q\@ HEAZZ
—NWE=ZRB-_+—HBENEWM-

The loan receivable was made to an independent borrower
and was secured by (i) the pledge of an aircraft leased to the
borrower by a company wholly owned by the borrower's sole
director; and (i) 49% issued share capital of the borrower.
The loan receivable, bears interest at 15% per annum and is
repayable with a maturity period of 18 months from the date
of agreement, was due on 21 March 2019. The borrower has
default in repayment on due date of 21 March 2019.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT
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BE

26.

27.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

LOAN RECEIVABLE (continued) 26.

As at 31 December 2021, the allowance for ECLs in
respect of the loan receivable was HK$15,629,000 (2020:
HK$15,629,000).

FEURE R @)
o) e F DA Nt A8
BMEKERNEHEEERES
%15,629,0008Bc (ZE - F !
15,629,000 7T) ©

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. TARRIE - & KR HAFEURER
RECEIVABLES Bi=]
2021 2020
—EZ—F —2°F

HK$'000 HK$’'000
F#Ex FEIT
Prepayments FATRIE 5,068 3,036
Deposits %<& 3,433 1,644
Other receivables (note) HuEWIE (1) 137,384 130,425
Less: Allowance for ECLs o FERRE RS E R (89,485) (87,655)
56,400 47,450

Note: 5k -

As at 31 December 2020, consideration receivable of approximately
HK$82,041,000 in relation to a disposal of an unlisted equity fund in 2018 was
included in other receivables and the allowance for ECLs was fully provided.

Save for the allowance for ECLs on other receivables of
approximately HK$89,485,000 (2020: HK$87,655,000)
provided as at 31 December 2021, none of the above assets
is impaired at the end of the reporting period and the
financial assets relate to other receivables was mainly related
to the re-classification of an acquired convertible bond during
the year 2020.

RIBZREF+_B=+—H BT N\FH
%3FLFEHXZIS%$EEEE’JEEH&T&F%’JBZ,OM,OOO
BTEFARMEBWREBELERAIRBREES
B

BRI E_—F+ZA=+—H2W
HthEWDRBEEHEEFREBERE
#89,485,0008 T (Z&E & F :
87,655,000/ 7T) 4h > REREHEAR > Ll
BEHARAE MZEsMEENEM
BUWHREBEFEIRN _ESFES
MOEN BRI ES -
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28.

29.

154

BANK BALANCES AND RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCES

28

IR1THE R Z IRFIIRITARER

2021 2020

B —5 TECEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Bank balances IRITAEER 2,539 3,332
Restricted bank balances (note) ZRRGERITAEER (BT5E) - 1,467
2,539 4,799

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$2,382,000 (2020: HK$1,969,000). Conversion of RMB into
other currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Note:

No bank balances of the Group was freezed as at 31 December 2021 while
the bank balances as at 31 December 2020 of approximately HK$1,467,000
was freezed by the banks under a court order as the Group was involved in a
lawsuit then.

TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

29.

R—_Z_—=+_-_8B=+—08"
AEBYUARKSENIRITLE R
#72,382,0008 T (ZE - F :
1,969,000 7T) o AR IEERFEHEN
G NEEBRKAREE EERNES
BRE)AAIFRBREMER  KE
EEAEBERELEIEEFNIER
TEARBRBAEMEK.

M 5E -

RIEZ—F+ZA=+—H >  AEELEIRT
BERRAE MARAEEERELHRA RID
ZTE+ B =+—HBIRTTAEERE1,467,00058
TG W ERTTIRB AP dn © R4S ©

FEfTRRTR
RIEBTE A BRI D
T

2021 2020

—F-— “2TERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FHETT

Within 30 days 30K 16,434 3,387
31 to 60 days 31E60K 19,608 -
Over 60 days 60K £ 60,633 386
96,675 3,773

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30 to 90 days after the month-end statement.

FEERA AT B —RINBE%B30E
QOKAER ©
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30.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

30. HtFErRIERKEtIRIE

2021 2020

—EB-—F BT EE

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FEx THET

Other payables HMENRIE 65,703 57,873
Provision for claims (note) REEHREE (HED) 295,437 200,000
Accruals FEST=IE 167,167 59,293
Receipts in advance B IE 27,918 11,135
556,225 328,301

Note:

A provision of claim amounted to HK$200,000,000 has been made by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of Action 4 (as
detailed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements) brought against
the Company on 9 December 2020 by the joint official liquidators in Hong
Kong and the Cayman Islands of Honghua Investment Fund Limited, an
exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
(the “"Fund”) following the Fund was being wound up.

Details of Action 4 is set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A provision of claim amounted to RMB33,440,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$40,947,000) has been made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 following a judgement of Action 2 (as detailed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements) served to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company by Zhuhai Henggin New District Court for compensating
the plaintiff under the subrogation rights to an outstanding amount of
approximately RMB54.7 million.

Details of Action 2 is set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A provision of claim amounted to RMB44,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$54,490,000) has been made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 following a judgement of Action 1 (as detailed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements) served to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company by the People’s Court in Chaoyang District, Beijing for
compensating the plaintiff under the subrogation rights to an outstanding loan
of approximately RMB44.5 million.

Details of Action 1 is set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have considered the legal advices from the Company's legal counsel
and of the view that the Company does not have merits in the defence against
the Claim and provision of the same amount of the Claim has been made
accordingly.

5T

RZETEFRR AEERBEE_ZE_2F
+ZA=+—HLEFERHonghua Investment
Fund Limited (EBEH S MM INERRHR
~E (ZEE)) TEEKHSHEENHRERS
BARZZ_EFE+ B AHHEAABRENGF
4 GEBERGAMBRRIWEEL0) sHRRBER
#9200,000,0007& 7z ©

FrERABIEF I BN R B A IR MI5E40 0

BE_ T -GS+ A=+—HILEE +&H
ERREREFBARKFN HEALEGES
MM RMT F40) WHREELRAT2ERNBL
% EHREB TR E AR 1533,440,0007T (18
E10#940,947,000%7T) » UBERESREEEEE
# AR 154,700,0007C Y AL 1E

AMAR2EBE B SRR AR B REN 40°

HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLEE -&x&E@
ERIEFEFABE AR ARE SRR GEEFESHE
ﬁ;éﬁa‘%@ﬁ%rﬁ?w) HIREEAATZEMN
AT EHRBE TR B #E AR %44,500,0007T
(*ﬁ*ﬁwﬁm 490,000/ 7t) > UBBERESREE
ERH AR H44,500,00070 BIFALIE

BRFRBFE  F2RREMFRKRMT40°

ERRILFGEEMBERRT ARATEFEERE
HERBEREREERRBA R AR L EEREN
RRRE WEAEFLZRENEERER-
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FTrA=T—HLEE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

30. HhEIRIBERETUE @

The movements of provision for claims during the year are as RERNRBAREEENESHUWT
follows:
2021 2020
—E_—F —BTER
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHT
At 1 January n—RA—H 200,000 =
Additional provision made FRINEHIR B R 93,949 200,000
Exchange difference R =R 1,488 =
At 31 December R+—ZB=+—H 295,437 200,000
INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FHRIRITREMES
BORROWINGS
2021 2020
—E-—F TEITHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHE7T
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITHEE —EIKH 15,306 14,899
Other borrowings — secured HihEE -2 100,000 100,000
Other borrowings — unsecured Hhfg 5 —Eig 682,672 523,944
797,978 638,843
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HE_Z

SilE

——EtCB=t—BLEE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31.
BORROWINGS (continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

sStRIRITREMER @

EEARLTHEIEE !

2021 2020
—E-—%F P R
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Within one year —FR 797.978 533,789
More than one year, BR—FE T EBMmE
but not exceeding two years - 105,054
797,978 638,843
Portion of bank borrowings that BEREREBFER
contains a repayment on demand IRITEEE D
clause (shown under current liabilities) (FRENEEIE FNEET) (15,306) (14,899)
Less: Amount due for settlement within J& : ZE512(8 8 RNEEBNEEE
12 months (shown under current (CP=FrE=N)
liabilities) (782,672) (623,944)
Amount due for settlement after AR12ER BEENEEE
12 months - a
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s

31.

158

B A=T—HILEE

£

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

31.

st ER1T

REMEBEES @

FEBEENREENTIIEEEHE !

HK$ RMB Total
BT AR fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

2021 —E-—-%
Bank borrowings — unsecured RITEE—EITIF - 15,306 15,306
Other borrowings - secured HMEE- BRI 100,000 - 100,000
Other borrowings - unsecured Htnfg & —miIg| 637,555 45,117 682,672
737,555 60,423 797,978

2020 —z-=
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITEE—EIKH = 14,899 14,899
Other borrowings - secured HithEE-B R 100,000 100,000
Other borrowings - unsecured HithEE—EIiKH 481,220 42,724 523,944
581,220 57,623 638,843

The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

R+ZB=+—B8FEMERMNT

2021 2020

—E-—F —BBF

Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITHEE — migH 10.2% 10.2%
Other borrowings — secured HMEE — 2R 6% 8.6%
Other borrowings — unsecured HhEE — miEHN 21.5% 21.5%

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT
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B —F+_A=+—HILEE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group breached certain covenant clauses in bank and other
borrowings agreement under which the Group was default
on repayment of bank and other borrowings to lenders.
As a result, as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$268,953,000 (2020:
HK$260,945,000) is subject to an early repayment option
exercisable by the lenders. Such bank and other borrowings
are classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. As at the approval date on these consolidated
financial statements, the lenders have not requested for the
early repayment of the bank and other borrowings.

At the end at the reporting period, the Group's credit
facilities are secured by:

(i) the Group’s trade receivables of gross amount
approximately HK$600,639,000 (2020: HK$400,639,000);

(i)  personal and corporate guarantees of certain directors
and immediate and ultimate holding company;

At 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately
HK$26,469,000 (2020: HK$32,000,000) of available undrawn

borrowing facilities.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s other borrowings of
approximately HK$8,531,000 (2020: HK$3,000,000) was
due to a related company controlled by Mr. Lyu NingJiang,
a director of the Company and HK$6,925,000 (2020:
HK$7,046,000) was due to Mr. Deng ShiChao, a director of
the Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong and overseas.

o;-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

5B RIT R E B R

REZE-E_—ER_E_FF+_
B=1+—HEFE AEEEREITR
HiEERZWE TEERT HIL
rEBEREFRAEBEREMERS
HHREEN Rt R - —FEK
E_EF+"_A=+—RH RITKEM
B E%9268,953,0008 7T (ZE-TF .
260,945,000/ 7T) BRERATHEE
KRIZERBREEEME - 2FRTK
HMEER _E_—Er_ES_FTF
T+ A=+ —HNEARBABE X
EEEUBBRRMLAEQSE  BRALE
BEREREEBRTREMMEE

RBESHR ZEENEEREEUT
RE R

() AEE#600,639,000E T (ZF
TEF 600,639,000 7T) HIFE
YR BE TR 4B EE

(i) ETEFEREERRREERAT
BYE AR ABHER

R_ZB_—F+R=+—H'&&
@B’Jﬁkhﬁlﬂfﬁgﬁié%’\JZéAé?,OOO%E
ZZ 24 132,000,000 7T) ©

AT —F+ZHB=+—8 &x&EHE
ENHRAARDEEI BT HLEEFN
REZE N B E &R 498,531,000 7T
(CZTE - F 4 3,000,000 7T) KENR
m%*%&iﬁwﬁﬂﬂiéﬁw
B4 H A fERR6,925,00058 T (ZE
T 1 7,046,000 7T) o
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HE&RE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
RIEAEH]R RIEHEHTIRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EZ—& " ZEBI—F "ZT°ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FER FHET
Within one year —FR 1,522 1,422 1,362 1,317
In the second to fifth years, SCEEERE
inclusive (BIEERMF) 1,090 516 1,028 496
2,612 1,938 2,390 1,813
Less: Future finance charges il : RAEBIE RIS (222) (125)  N/ARER  N/ATER
Present value of lease HERENRE
obligations 2,390 1,813 2,390 1,813
Less: Amount due for i ER2EAREEN
settlement within %iz cHEE)
12 months (shown under HmrBRR
current liabilities) (1,362) (1,317)
Amount due for settlement AR1ERBEENTHE
after 12 months 1,028 496

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities were 10.1% (2020: 10.2%).

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB (2020:
RMB).

BRARNEHEERNMETHEEREE
FEB101% (CTEZEF 110.2%) °

FREHEaEN UBERARBSE
(CEZEF AR -
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—F+A=+—HLEE

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(a)

On 17 May 2016, the Company issued 2018 convertible
bond (the “2018 CB"”) and 2019 convertible bond (the
“2019 CB") with principal amounts of HK$100,000,000
and HK$100,000,000 respectively. The maturity dates of
2018 CB and 2019 CB were 16 May 2018 and 16 May
2019, respectively.

The 2018 CB and 2019 CB were convertible at the
option of bondholder at any time after the 40th day
from the date of issue and up to the 10th day prior
to the dates of maturity at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.35 per share (subject to adjustments). Based
on the initial conversion price, the 2018 CB and 2019
CB were convertible into approximately 571,429,000
ordinary shares of the Company in aggregate. The
2018 CB and the 2019 CB, if not converted, would
be redeemed at their outstanding principal amount
together with any interest accrued thereon, plus an
additional amount of a compound return of 12% per
annum over the outstanding principal amount on
maturity. The 2018 CB and the 2019 CB carry interest
at a rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually on
30 June and 31 December of each intervening year.
The effective interest rates of the liability components
of the 2018 CB and 2019 CB were 22.8% and 23.5%,

respectively.

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

33. AIRES

N ARG REAAEH AT
ABRET_ZE-N\FAIBRKE
F(ZE—NETBRRESF))
RZE-—NAF0#kRES (2
E—hEFRABRESF)) T
2 A7 100,000,000% 7Tt &
100,000,000t e Z & — /\F 7]
BREFS R NFAIBRRKE
SWEHBASNA-T—N\EDL
A+RBRZZE-—AFERATAK
go

—E-NFAIBRRESFSKE
—hEBRBRESNESFEEA
AR IT A HAEEF40H EREH
108 I PE R BEIE B> 4D IR IR
EASR0.358 T (A FHRE) - =
- N\FIMBRESFKZE—AN
FOMBRESRNBRRESER
A& H4571,429,00008 A F) &
BR - EAHAEHBN_Z—N
FOUMBRESFR-E—NEAR
RESKEEREERASREER
HEAMEAEsAMEEE 3zt
HAREBEASBHEZFEEEI12%5
BEHNEERKR  _T— N\EAH
RESR _Z—AETJBRRKRES
Eﬁﬂ%wﬁﬁ SHFELNT—

TREEFEFENASBEZT
E&+_H:+—E§ﬁo:;
—NEFAJBRBRES N T —hF
AMEESEEHDNERFE
DB 5A22.8%5%23.5%
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

162

(continued)

On 10 May 2018, the Company and the bondholder of
2018 CB entered into a deed of amendment, pursuant
to which the maturity date of 2018 CB was extended
from 16 May 2018 to 16 May 2020 and the interest rate
was increased from 5% per annum to 6% per annum.
To effect the extension, the bondholder requested the
Company to settle the additional amount as described
above and an amount of HK$15,440,000 was paid
thereof. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the extended 2018 CB was 25.5%.

On 15 May 2019, the Company and the bondholder of
2019 CB entered into a deed of amendment, pursuant
to which the maturity date of 2019 CB was extended
from 16 May 2019 to 16 May 2021, the conversion
price of 2019 CB was decreased from HK$0.35 to
HK$0.1 per share and the interest rate was increased
from 5% per annum to 6% per annum. Interest payment
dates were not changed. To effect the extension, the
bondholder requested the Company to settle the
additional amount as described above and an amount
of approximately HK$25,493,000 was paid thereof. The
effective interest rate of the liability component of the
extended 2019 CB was 10.7%.

Both 2018 CB and 2019 CB have the following early
redemption options. Holders of 2018 CB and 2019 CB
have the right to require the Company to redeem the
whole of the 2018 CB and 2019 CB respectively held by
them prior to the maturity date at a redemption price
equal to the respective principal amount of 2018 CB
and 2019 CB together with accrued and unpaid interest
and the additional amount upon the occurrence of
certain events that are out of the Company'’s control.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT

(a)

33. AR ES @

€=)
S ZE—-N\FRA+H ' XRF
HZIZ-N\FEUBRRESFNE
FIRFAATILEBITZE BIE—
T N\FoRESFZEHBEH
22— N\FHEBE+AABEEE
ZEZIZEFRA+ARBE o mMAE
HEESHIEMEFE6% A
LEREM BFFBEAERER
BlEALLMBEISBELZNE
F15,440,0008 o KIERE T
—N\ETHRESBEHDIZE
PRF)ZEZ%25.5% 0

R-ZZ—hAERB+ER&A
BEZE-NAFEUBREBRESDH
BEHEFB AT LETEZL Fit
BZE—NFABRRESH I
BEHBA-_ZE—HNAEHEBE+/NH
ERE_E_—FFHH+H>
MIE—NFEARRESNER
BIRER0.35BTREC1E T
MERHEBSKHIEMNMEEES6S
%IJEHTAEHHIH‘*@J % BT
RER BEEFEAEREAQT
EE LA SRR B E A
#925,493,0008B T - RERZ-F
—hWEJBRBRESEEIINE
R E%10.7%°

TE-N\EUBRKREFKZT
—hENBRKRESFBEUATRER
ElEERE - — - \FRBRE
Fh-_FE-NEABRRESFA
ANEREREARDNFEBEE
NEEFEENETEHERED
HHABER - /\FrJ#R
BER_Z-NAFrBRKRESE
MAZE BOEBERE KX
R B R BIEESN T ERBE R R %

ﬁE‘JF‘}EZ’\‘ —T - \FAH]
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

In addition, for both 2018 CB and 2019 CB, the
Company may, at any time prior to the maturity date,
redeem in whole the 2018 CB and 2019 CB for the
time being outstanding at their principal amount
together with accrued and unpaid interest and the
additional amount to the date fixed by the Company for
redemption provided that at the date of redemption,
at least 90% in principal amount of the 2018 CB and
2019 CB has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

As such,

redemption options are considered as a single

the conversion option and the early

derivative for fair value measurement purpose.

On 31 August 2017, the Company issued 2020
convertible bond (the “2020 CB") with a principal
amount of HK$200,000,000. The maturity date of 2020
CB was 30 August 2020.

The 2020 CB was convertible at the option of the
bondholder at any time from and including the first
anniversary from its date of issue up to the 10th day
prior to the dates of maturity at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.35 per share (subject to adjustments).
Based on the initial conversion price, the 2020 CB was
convertible into approximately 571,429,000 ordinary
shares of the Company. The 2020 CB, if not converted,
would be redeemed at its outstanding principal amount
together with any interest accrued thereon. The 2020
CB carries interest at a rate of 8% per annum, which is
payable semi-annually on 18 June and 18 December of
each intervening year. The effective interest rate of the
liability component of the 2020 CB was 24.2%.

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

33. AIIRES @

(&)
o M — - \FABRES
T-NEOHRERESMS
Z /NI S = TR S AL
REASERERES RARGHE
M&@iEKQT#EZEEE
HAIE 2 3R5N £ 88 BEIE B E K
TEZERZZE-—N\FAIBRKE
FR-ZEBE-—NEABMRES &
REERHA — - N\ERR
BER_F-NFABRRESE
DOONM AL AR EIHR B
(o] 5% Ut s e s 8

L > R Ko R F B[O E AR
VAR TEFEENNE—TE
THo

R-IE—tHENRB=t+—H =&
RABT T _TFUMRES
(IZTE_FFW#HkRESF) ' &
+%87%200,000,0008C° —E
TEABMRESNEBAR T
—BENA=1H-

TECEFUMRESESEE
AR ZEZEF A RRESE
THHREZE—BEEZIEHEAN0H
PERFEEE YRR ELAE
f80.358 Tt (I FHE) - ZFZ
MR ESBIRIRKRER
i A49571,429,00008 2 A B
BR-EAHABBRN_ZTZZ
FOMRESHREAREESS
HERHETMESF SED
ZTEFUMRESIREFI%RN
MEFHE BFFIN—TORE
Bt EFENAA+NEHE+Z
A+ NBXff - —_E_FFa#K
KRESBEHONERMES
24.2%°
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33.

164

B A=T—HILEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)  (continued)

The fair value of the liability component was estimated
at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond if the conversion option was
not exercised. The conversion options embedded in
the convertible bonds were recognised as derivative
financial instruments and were measured at fair value on
initial recognition and remeasured at each subsequent
reporting date.

Owing to the fact that 2018 CB, 2020 CB and 2019 CB were
matured (as extended) without conversion on 16 May 2020,
30 August 2020 and 16 May 2021 respectively, the respective
outstanding balances of 2018 CB, 2020 CB and 2019
CB were re-classified as "Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings” in the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has no outstanding
options, warrants or other securities in issue which are
convertible into or giving rights to subscribe for, convert or
exchange into, any ordinary shares, as the case may be.

33. AR ES @

(b) (&

MMRERETRE BRSO
AFEDEREMUESEFRTS
MERREFETHRFTUMGLE - BRA
AR ESHRRECERE RN
EEMTIARRYTEIFZA
FTEFAERNBESKRESAHRE
MEtEe

AR _Z-N\FIBRRES “F-F
FAMRESF R _T-—AFIHRERE
FANR_E_TERA+AE T
—EFNB=+tBR=-ET-—F51A
TRBEHER TR - —F— /\EET#l
REF —E_TEFABRRES KT
—NEBRRESFERNR f%ﬁ?%ﬁ
EEFREENGEVBERRTEND
BRTStRRTREMEE -

bR EXCPriRBEE SN R A B BB
RTENBERE BREJIEMEE
TR R E A SO TS0 - B
B EAEER (RFBRME) B

HithgE 55
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33. AR {EH @
The movements of the liability and derivative components of FRUMRES2BERTEBDN
the convertible bonds for the year are set out below: EEFHWT
Liability Derivative
components components Total
afEHs [ 1 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHET
At 1 January 2020 R_ZTZF—HF—H 437,190 1,430 438,620
Interest expenses MERX 75,255 = 75,255
Fair value gain NEER T = (1,430) (1,430)
Reclassified to other AR EMOER

borrowings upon maturity HiEE (368,465) = (368,465)
At 31 December 2020 and AZE_SE+A=+-HR”

1 January 2021 —g”_—%—AB—H 143,980 = 143,980
Interest expenses FERAX 8,048 - 8,048
Reclassified to other B EMOERE

borrowings upon maturity HMEE (152,028) - (152,028)
At 31 December 2021 R-Z2-Z—%+-RA=+—H = - -
Represented by: ﬁ?ﬁ :

At 31 December 2021 —E-—%+-A=+—H
Current portion Eﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ - - -
At 31 December 2020 \ZEZEFE+"A=+—H
Current portion BPEAER 143,980 = 143,980
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33. AJARRSF @
The derivative component is measured at its fair value at the TESBINEREHARUE R FEE
end of each reporting period. The fair values are estimated B RFEUZEABER (F=RRTF
using Binominal model (level 3 fair value measurements). The Bxt2) At BEARBRRKRNT :
key assumptions used are as follows:
2020
—EIEF
HK$'000
FHTT
Weighted average share price T HRRE 0.136
Weighted average exercise price #1718 2
Expected volatility TRHA R & 84%
Expected life TRHAR SE AT 1
Risk free rate =B 0.05%
34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 34. BAT5HE(R
2021 2020
—E-—-5F —BIEHR
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHTT
Loss allowance of financial guarantee B/ FERIVES I 35,000 33,000

166

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided a corporate
guarantee in favour of an independent third party in respect
of a loan facility granted to an associate of the Group up
to an aggregate amount of approximately HK$204,960,000
(2020: HK$204,960,000), of which approximately
HK$36,166,000 (2020: HK$36,166,000) has been utilised.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss
allowance in respect of the financial guarantee of
HK$35,000,000 (2020: HK$33,000,000) in accordance with
expected credit loss model was made under HKFRS 9. The
additional allowance for ECL of approximately HK$2,000,000
(2020: HK$7,200,000) has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Details of the loss allowance for the
financial guarantee contract are set out in Note 6(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.

RZEZ—F+ZB=+—H &x&
B FAER —RBHELATNE
ARERBILIE=- A lRMEEER
MEEZ94204,960,0008 T (ZE =

T 1 204,960,00087T)  HHFEH
FA#336,166,0008 7T (Z2 -2 F :

36,166,000 7T) ©

REE_Z-_—F+ZA=+—H8I1
FEOIREBESBMBREENFEIRE
THEBEERBREEMEL AR
BRI A BE % 535,000,000 7T
(ZZ”Z £ : 33,000,000/ 7T) - FBHA
S EFEEEIME#E#2,000,0008 7T
TETE4 17,200,000 T) BRRIE
mERAER BV EERAONER
BEHN RS M ERERMT6()
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B —F+_A=+—HILEE
DEFERRED TAX 5 iﬁfimﬁlﬁ
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRIRERIESENEEUT !
as follows:
Fair value  Revaluation of
adjustments investment
arising from  property and
acquisition of a financial asset
a subsidiary at FVTPL Total
U EE— RENER
MEBAR  —ERATE
-3 4 FAEEZ
ATERAE SMEEZER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAET FAT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZRFE—F—H 8,016 40,547 48,563
Credited to profit or loss for the year FRF a5t A (2,367) (40,706) (43,073)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries ~ R{EHEHBAE = (6,024) (6,024)
Exchange difference ERELR 499 = 499
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZEFEF+"A=+—HkK
1 January 2021 “2T-%—-F—H 6,148 (6,183) (35)
Charged to profit or loss for the year FRX Bk 15 - 15
Exchange difference EREL 213 - 213
At 31 December 2021 RZE2Z-5+ZA=+—-H 6,376 (6,183) 193

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deferred taxation has
not been provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference amounting to HK$1,366,000
(2020: HK$1,450,000) attributable to profits earned by the
Group's PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

A B —FERITZZITEFE+TAE
=+—8 > XEETEKB QS BEN
A LR E 1,366,000 7T (=
T FF 1 1,450,00087T) WARELES
MR RPHRIBIERIE TR AE
B AE L0 PRI O B B 1 = B A FRERS > T
ERUEZEERIERATERKLGE
@o
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B A=T—HILEE

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 35. i@%ﬁﬁlﬁ )
The movement in deferred tax assets during the year is as FRIRERIESEEEHNT ©
follows:
Allowance
for ECLs
FEHAEE
Ei81RE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2020 A _E_EF—H—H 33,802
Charged to profit or loss FFAETR (33,802)

At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and H-E-H+-“HA=+—H-

31 December 2021 —E-—%—A8
+=-A=+—H

—HBR-ZE=-—F

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

UTAMEEYBERIRENIEESN
B IBE DN

2021 2020

—E-—& TETEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Deferred tax liabilities FIEMIEEE 6,376 6,148
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE E (6,183) (6,183)
193 (35)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$1,739,090,000 (2020:
HK$841,578,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such losses. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of approximately HK$72,202,000 (2020: HK$16,285,000) that
will expire in 2025. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

REREPR AEENKARIEFHIE
#91,739,090,0008 T (ZE T £ :
841,578,000 T) » Al HIKIH R KA
Mo R EEERTDIEIERIEEE
FFA KRS IERERN472,202,000
BT (T2 TEHF [ 16,285,00087T) &5
BRI AFIH HMRIES
BRI RS-
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. fg#s
Shares: i :
2021 2020
ot S ot 3=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FATT
Authorised: ETE
1,000,000,000 (2020: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,0008% (ZZ - 4F :
ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008%) S EE
HK$0.20 (2020: HK$0.20) each 0.207T (ZE -4 : 0.20%87T)
ZEER 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBE :
342,572,857 (2020: 342,572,857) 342,572,857 (CE_BE&F !
ordinary shares of 342,572,8578%) SR EE
HK$0.20 (2020: HK$0.20) each 0.208 7t (ZE-FF : 0.20%7T)
ZEBR 68,515 68,515

The Group's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is to maintain its
listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the
shares.

The Company reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts, redemption

of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to
immediately call borrowings. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group breached certain financial covenants, details of which are set

out in notes 31 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEBEBESEAREAEEFELENE
7 MEBELEBRREFRGTRREKRKHN
EIEE

2L B RIS ERHE N B A ESR TS M RSB AP |
TFRRED25%RMDOARFERE

FRAREEBBEREANEARERERERAEA
BRBHEARB - AERRBEBIRE 81T
MRERBORG  URETHE BORFEEN
REBEELURLERE TREERBERRE-

AETUBZANFTEENSFEESBMUIRNER
BEBE - BHE_Z_—EKR-_ZT-_TF+_-H
=t+—BLEFE AEEERETHERZN Hif
BER TS MR MIFE31 /%330
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The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 56 of

the consolidated financial statements.

170

(a)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group includes: (i)
the premium arising from the issue of new shares in
prior years; (i) the expense incurred in connection with
issuance of new shares in prior years; (i) dividends
declared and paid in prior years; and (iv) amount
transferred from share-based compensation reserve

upon exercise of share options.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of paid-
in capital of the companies comprising the Group,
being proceeds from the issue of preference shares
without voting rights issued by a subsidiary to certain
independent third parties at an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$14,593,000 (equivalent to
USD1,864,000) credited to the capital reserve.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operation. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT
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B E
REBRMGREREE (BEF
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38.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2021 are as follows:

38.

R BATNRE

TENHBAEINRN _E_—F+_H

=+—BBEFEE T

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of issued  Percentage of ownership interest/
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
HMALNE i,/ RrtE/
e AR EEE B&ITREHE b EREAL TEER
Direct Indirect
B kS
Ace Leader (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of financing
B2 BB BRAR &R HK$300,000,000 (2020 100%)  services
300,000,000 7 (CETRE:  RUSHEE
MEER 100%)
China Wood Financial Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% - Provision of intercompany
Hong Kong Company Limited oy HK$10,000,000 (2020: 100%) management services
PAERMERARAT 1000000087  (CEZFE: REERHEERS
BYE &R 100%)
Beijing Tu An Car Rental Services ~ PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of car rental
Limited* (Note) HE RMB5,000,000 (2020: 100%) services
Frpz EREERIEAT B #5,000,0007 (CBTBE:  RYUSEAREH
(FtzE) HEIIEES 100%)
Finest Achieve Limited BVI Ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
EEARAT ABRUKE USDT  (2020: 100%) REER
1XTNERR (CEREE!
100%)
Hongshen Xi Wang Technology PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Investment holding
(Zhuhai) Company Limited* (Note) ~ HE] RMB25,000,000 Qwo 0% KEZK
ShRFENK 0K5) BRATE (W) B #25,000,00070 (CB2BE:
NEMER 100%)
China Wood Finance & Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited BE HK$1 (2020 0%  KERR
PAERMRREBRAT 1ATREER (CBBF:
100%)
China Wood Green Resources PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading and processing of
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* (Note) dE RMB10,000,000 (2020: 100%) furniture wood
RAGEER (RI) BRAR (D) AE%10,000,00070 (CZ2RF:  GRAAMRERMI
EIIERS 100%)
* For identification purposes only
Note: These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability Company (foreign- fis : ZEMBABLHRBEFRBEEZMAER

invested enterprise sole investment) under the PRC Law.

NE U ERECEBSH) -
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I T e = A —H IE T

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. RMBABINIRE @
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, KABIEERRA > ERFAFIA QBB
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally BREDIERXEAERAFEES
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial ‘JZ@@Zﬁ%@%Ta/%TEE’J%Eﬁ
portion of the net liabilities/assets of the Group. To give Do RRBIEER ?b%iﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁ@j
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the E’\J# BFE<LRES
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.
Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non- BEEAFERETNAEERBR
controlling interest are set out below: BIFFEHINMT
()  Higgs Dynamics Limited (i)  Higgs Dynamics Limited
2021 2020
—g-—F —BCBF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T THTT
Percentage of equity interest held by ~ JEZER#E 75 A& HTED /7
non-controlling interest of Higgs Bz @B BRAE
Dynamics Zhuhai Company Limited (TFw&EEH))
(“Higgs Dynamics”): FRIFReEE L 40% 40%

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAEIBEIERERAT
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38. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. RMIBATIMKE @

(i) Higgs Dynamics Limited (continued) (i)  Higgs Dynamics Limited (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRRAERFB N ZHHER
information of Higgs Dynamics. The amounts disclosed ME-KESHHEEBHHA
are before any inter-company eliminations: ZEH !

2021 2020
—E-—F —EBTTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T TFHETT
Total expenses MR 20 16
Loss for the year FREE (20) (16)
Loss and total comprehensive income FREEKREEURALLER
for the year (44) 33)
Loss for the year allocated to DEEAEHE IE
non-controlling interest of the TR 2 FRETE
Higgs Dynamics: (8) (6)
Current assets REEE 1,580 1,538
Non-current assets ERBEE 16 34
Current liabilities G =N (1,903) (1,852)
Net liabilities FER (307) (280)
Accumulated losses of non-controlling R <E BHAFE RIS
interest of Higgs Dynamics at the JEfER T 2 RET 1R -
reporting date: 7.275 7,267
Net cash flows from operating KEEFFSRENEPEE
activities 8 25
Net cash flows from investing activities & & RENFISIRERE/FEE - 24
Net cash flows from financing activities FEE EENFISIRE M2 /F5A - 6,905
Net increase in cash and HERRESEB/YIEINFEE
cash equivalents 8 25
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Statements

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REHERERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (@) WHRIELEMBLE
2020
—E=—Ea
HK$'000
FHETT
Net assets deemed disposed of: HRIFBLHEEESFE .
Prepayments, deposits and AARE B2k
other receivables HEWRRIE 14,925
Investment property KEY= 237,971
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y SEL - 168
Bank balance RITHEER 52
Other payable Eﬂﬂ%ﬁmlﬁ (53,555)
Bank and other borrowing RITREMES (232,545)
Deferred tax IRIEIRIE (6,024)
Accumulated balance of non-controlling JEFERE R M RET4S
interest 60,450
Foreign currency translation reserve SN A (AR (149)
Net assets deemed disposed of RIFELEBERE 21,293
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries HRIEHERB AT EE (21,293)
Consideration, satisfied by cash B LIREEHE -
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash RELEZHERREEFEN 2
equivalents in respect of the deemed disposal is as FBREDWE
follows:
2020
“2TERF
HK$'000
FH7T
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in fRIFHE 2 IREK
respect of the deemed disposal REZEBY 2 Fnd (52)
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

39. FEHEER=ERMET @

(b) RMEFHELEZEHEHIR

activities
Bank and
Lease other Convertible
liabilities  borrowings bonds
R1TR
HERR Hfttfg &  mJfRES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—F—H 1,813 638,843 143,980
Changes from financing cash flows BRE& IR & & &)
Increase of new interest-bearing  Hiist B H g E12 M
other borrowings - 5,531 -
Lease rental paid ENEEEE (1,737) - -
(1,737) 5,531 -
Other changes HthEs
Interest charge FEZH 229 109,397 8,048
Increase in lease liabilities HE&EEM 2,600 - -
Interest element of lease paid B HEENF EBMH (226) = =
Accrued interest FESTHI B (3) (109,397) =
Termination of leases BIETRE (344) = =
Reclassification of convertible bonds EX D {80 G ES - 152,028 (152,028)
Exchange difference FERELR 58 1,576 -
2,314 153,604 (143,980)
At 31 December 2021 R_FB_—F+_"_A=+—H 2,390 797,978 -
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

mAaRERERNE @

(b) RMEFHEEZEEHR (B

Bank and
Lease other  Convertible
liabilities  borrowings bonds
RIT R
HEaRE HifgE AR ES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZE2-ZTF—F—H 6,860 500,835 437,190
Changes from financing cash flows BEIREMELE)
Increase of new interest-bearing i S HMESIE
other borrowings - 5,900 -
Repayment of bank and other BERTREMEES
borrowings - (5,765) -
Lease rental paid ENHEEHRE (3,518) = =
(3,518) 135 -
Other changes Hhg
Interest charge MEXH 471 44,328 75,255
Increase in lease liabilities HESREM 2,108 - -
Interest element of lease paid ENHEENHEIHD (343) (956) =
Accrued interest FESTHI B (128) (44,267) e
Termination of leases KLIFAE (3,773) = =
Reclassification of convertible bonds E?ﬁ DR PR R ES = 368,465 (368,465)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries ~ 1R{EHEKBAE - (232,545) -
Exchange difference EREER 136 2,848 =
(1,529) 137,873 (293,210)
At 31 December 2020 R_Z_EF+_A=+—H 1,813 638,843 143,980
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B —F+_A=+—HILEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of

09

maRERERMNE®

(c) HERE RN
HMESFARERERERTNE

cash flows for leases comprise the following: BHEEUT :
2021 2020
—E-—F - -
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FH7T
Within operating cash flows REEREREN 226 343
Within financing cash flows RRIEREREN 1,737 3,518
1,963 3,861
These amounts relate to the following: ZETREEATI AR .
2021 2020
—Eg-—F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FH7T
Lease rental paid ENEEES 1,966 3,989
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HARTR

At 31 December 2021, the contingent liabilities of the Group
were mainly related to the following litigations.

Action 1

On 21 April 2020, a writ of summons was issued by an
independent third party in Beijing, China as plaintiff against
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group namely Gt R E ik
*BIEHFRAF]) as defendant (the “Action 1”). The plaintiff
claimed for the repayment of principal and the accrued
interests of a loan purportedly owed by the defendant to
the plaintiff in the total amount of approximately RMB59.5
million since 2014 (the “Purported Loan”). The defendant
has denied the existence of the Purported Loan and has
requested forensic checks to be conducted to the loan
agreement produced by the Plaintiff to the People’s Court
in Chaoyang District, Beijing Qb RM#BEE ARZELTD) (the
“Chaogang Court”). The Group has engaged a competent
legal advisor to act for its interests in respect of Action 1.

RIBE_—F+-_B=+—H &~&EE
N AEEFTEEL TRABR !

I:lﬁ“l\
R_Z_ZFNMB_+—H RHE
BRN—LBUE=F (FRRSH) H
AEEEEMBARIERERER
EEAMRAT (FRHE) EHENR
LR (TaRER1))  REBWBWEEZ
T-MEFEERREEHOARE
59,500,000t A £ BN ERFE S
FE (HEWEM) - REGRVFEIETE
B LEBRIERFABERARER (T4
R iERR)) RSP R EM G EE
TEERE - AEBEEMFMERS
BREEBEBUSEN DTS-
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I T e = A —H IE T

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Action 1 (continued)

In January 2022, the Group received a judgement
(“Judgement 1") from the Chaogang Court and ordered
that the defendant is required to pay a sum of approximately
RMB37.0 million plus damages of RMB7.5 million from
breach of contract. Immediately after the Judgement 1, the
Group has made an appeal to the Beijing No. 3 Intermediate
People’s Court JERME =R AR ZER) against the
Judgement 1.

As of the of approval date of these consolidated financial
statements, the appeal is still in progress. A provision of
claim in the amount of RMB44.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$54,490,000) was made during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$Nil).

Action 2

On 11 November 2020, a writ of summons was issued by an
independent third party in Hainan, China as plaintiff against
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group namely GARZEE
By (%B) BIR/AF))as defendant (the”Action 2”). The
plaintiff claimed for the subrogation rights to the outstanding
principal and accrued interest of a loan between GAZRZ
R (Bk8) BPR/AE)) as borrower and another independent
third party as lender amounted to approximately RMB54.7
million. There is no direct legal connections between the
plaintiff and the defendant.

The Company has engaged a competent legal advisor to act
for its interests in respect of the Action 2.

On 2 August 2021, the Group received a judgement
("Judgement 2") from Zhuhai Henggin New District
People’s Court (BkB#EZ & AR %FT) and ordered that
a compensation amounted to approximately RMB33.4
million with accrued interests is required to be settled by the
defendant.

In September 2021, the Company made the appeal to the
court against the Judgement 2.

A provision of claim in the amount of RMB33.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,947,000) was made for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$Nil).

40.

HABE @

e (@)

RIE_—_F—R AEEZEFRE

EBTRYFIR (THIGRT 1) » WS W ESE

T {T&EEH ARBE37,000,0007T0 £

Liﬁfgiaﬁ%aiﬁ“fi/\ﬁéﬂﬁ 500,000
cEBEFIR B AEBMEMAIAIE

it;aﬂ?%:qﬂé&)\ﬁ/ﬂﬂmﬂjtuﬁo

HEzSERaYERERMLERDS

FHFMEETT ERESBEARE
44,500,0007¢ (tHE 1R #954,490,0007%8
T EREBEE_S_—F+_-_F=+—
BIEFEEREE CE2F 58

7T) ©

I_-J?‘-I'\

NZIEZZEFE+—A+—H RHEH
BEN—2BIE=1 (FARS) H
REBE2EWBARLFEERF (B
B BRAR ((EAWS) BEHERASK
(TsFER2 ) - REIER FMAFHER
(5B BRABE (EAERA) 25—
LBIULE=1 ((FAERAN) 2BHEX
BERASRESMNENERNRMUELY
A NR#54,700,00070 RSB S 2
B E B AR o

AT ERIFR2ERE A E KA RN
WU HF# T E

Efiﬁ_—fﬁ}\ﬁ “RAEEBKk
BEEWE AR ERZREH R (TR
ZJ) P RE AR ERESFSEEY
A 1§33,400,0007T ©

KRB —ENA FABCHIIR
IR BRI b 3 o

RIEES A ARME33,400,0007T (FBE R
#940,947,00087T) EREBE S _—
E+-B=+t—HLEEEREE

BoFETHTD) o
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Action 3

On 20 October 2020, an independent third party in
Shenzhen, China as claimant filed an arbitration request
to China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in Beijing for a refund of shares subscription
money together with compensation of approximately
RMB25.5 million from GARABERE (TkE) BRAF) as
respondent (the”Action 3").

The Company has engaged a competent legal advisor to act

for its interests in respect of the Action 3.

A letter of termination issued by the claimant had been
received by the Group after the Court hearing on 15 May
2021 to terminate the Actions 3. Accordingly, no provision
has been made for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$Nil).

Action 4

A claim of HK$200,000,000 was brought against the
Company on 9 December 2020 by the joint official
liquidators in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands of
Honghua Investment Fund Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
(the
Shares and Class B Shares under which the Company,
as being the holder of Class C Shares of the Fund, was
requested to indemnify the holders of Class A Shares and
Class B Shares in total sum of HK$200,000,000 in total plus

purported returns pursuant to the terms of the subscription

“Fund”), appointed by the holders of its Class A

agreement dated 6 July 2017 (the “Action 4") following
the Fund was being wound up. A provision for claims of
HK$200,000,000 was made for the year ended 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of provision for
claims in respect of Action 4 was HK$200,000,000 (2020:
HK$200,000,000).

40.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

HAEE @
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AZE-EE+AT+H RBER
YW —LBUE=S (EBBHEAN) H
bR TERRCEB S REEE
RHARER BRAFHERE (&K
9 BIRAT (FAES) BERMIE
=28 LR BE i % 49 A R #625,500,0007T
(T&RER3 ) o

KRB EMFARIZES
UR/ERNmITE-

BRRA RN

N _E_—FHRA+HBAREAE
AEBERERE ADK LA
HREIER AL TERBEEZE
T—HE+ZA=+—HBLEEESRER

(CEBE BT

BN

Honghua Investment Fund Limited (£
HEREFMMINERRZERAE
(TZE£))  MREEAFERMD&ABER
DREAEANLZE) TEARHESHENH
BEXEBARZZEZZEF+TAA
Hm 4~ A B & #5200,000,0008 7T > #5
> AAE] FRZEENCERGF
BARBRERNRZERSERBEEH
B ZE—ttEFELtANBHNRERRK
MEABRG RBERMO A ABEE
£ %85 $£200,000,000# o0 E15FE G
¥ (TEFER4 1) - FEHEE200,000,00058 7T
ERBE_ZE-_TF+-_RA=+—H
FEEFREFE R -—F+"A4
=+—H > BRFRINREBHERE B
BV 8% 88 4200,000,0008 T (ZE - =
£ 1 200,000,000 7T) ©
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41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS A1. BAEIE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the RBEHRETNEEREENER
reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows: AEWT
2021 2020
—g-—F k-t 3
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
Capital contribution payable to MIFLETREREBNZHE
unlisted equity investments 36,735 35,757
42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42. KEHEZHE

180

(@) As lessor

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as

follows:

(@) fERLEA

HENBRRERENMRNOT :

2021 2020
—g-—-F k-t 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T8
Within one year —FR 4,586 5,797
In the second year RE_—FE - 2,889
In the third year RE=F - 501
Total wa st 4,586 9,187
The following table presents the amounts reported in TRIEFIBHEFRERIEEE
profit or loss:
2021 2020
—E-—F BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FHTT
Lease income KEHENHAERA
on operating leases 11,177 13,968
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(b) As lessee (b) fERAMEA
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases $$@EH§§T1?’%$)§Z¥}]¥@§%§
for motor vehicles and offices. As at 31 December HEAE - RoF a1
2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is EE+_A=+—H EHAE
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the HERESHMBHRRMNFT19PIE
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 19 to the ENRIAEERTNEHREEA
consolidated financial statements. =R
As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding lease R — = —
commitments relating to these motor vehicles and BRAZERERBAERNRER
offices was approximately HK$392,000 (2020: HK$ HE A4 A392,0008 T (ZE
367,000). T =4 367,000 7T) ©
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no RIE T FR_E"ZEF+_
new lease being entered into and not yet commenced. B=+—H AEELESFTIL
B REENHES-
43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. RAEH R
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these faiy iz SRS = E M E D PRt
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the IRz 24N AREE L EHRRE S BT
following transactions with related parties during the year: T
2021 2020
—E-—fF - 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FAET
Finance costs paid to M BB STt 2 AR E A A
Mr. Deng ShiChao (note 1) (FFzx1) 218 25
Finance cost paid to a related CilEabENSIFANENE %N
company (note 2) (¥5E2) 500 2
Rental expenses paid to a related MEEARSZMNHEERE
company (note 3) (fF5E3) 2,402 1,800

Mr. Deng ShiChao is a director of the Group's subsidiaries in 2021 and

Mr. Lyu NingJiang, a director of the Company, is also a director of the

Note:
1.
2020.
2.
related company in 2021 and 2020.
&

Mr. Deng ShiChao is a director of the Group's subsidiaries in 2021
and 2020; and Mr. Qiu Bin, a former director of the Company up to 3
December 2020, was also the sole director of the related company.

F5E -

1. RIB_—FR-Z-2E HHEBLEE
RAEEBRNBE AN —RES-

2. RIE—FR_ZTF FEILE
BRIABESR NAMEATESR

3. RIEZ—FERITTH PHBRE
AHEEENRBLAEES ; REALTAMES
BEE BE_SE_TE+_A=ZH) T
AREATNE—FS-
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. FEARRS

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group, K%lﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁ/\ﬁzﬁﬁw »BEEM
including amounts paid or payable to the Company's RENTARRBESZEEUT ¢

directors, is as follows:

2021 2020

—E——f T FEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#T FHTT

Short term employee benefits SR EEEF 1,627 5,481

Post-employment benefits BB R R 18 95

Total compensation paid or payable to HFZ2EIE A B2 (IS EMH

key management personnel EN=48%8 1,645 5,576

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note EEHFMNE—PHBENGTEMH

13 to the consolidated financial statements. WERMIEE130

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  44. " ATIMEI AR
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRAKRABNREBE RN ERTE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RERNT :
2021 2020
—E—% TETEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB 23 30
23 30
Current assets REEE
Prepayments FAfTRIE 5,990 4,422
Amounts due from subsidiaries VNI 59 =
Bank balances IR1T45ER 124 2,736
6,173 7,158
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BMBHwRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"E

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

——EtCB=t—BLEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

¥

. BATEMER AR @

2021 2020
—E--F TEITE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Current liabilities hEaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETI B A B R I8 29,539 68,079
Other payables and accruals HAERIE R et R IE 297,127 222,311
Convertible bonds AR ES = 143,980
Financial guarantee AT (R 35,000 33,000
Interest-bearing other borrowings stEEMBEE 630,701 474,366
992,367 941,736
Net current liabilities RENBRBEE (986,194) (934,578)
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRHERE (986,171) (934,548)
NET LIABILITIES =Ri=pe 242 (986,171) (934,548)
Equity i
Share capital ZiS 68,515 68,515
Reserves (note) fE#E (s (1,054,686) (1,003,063)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY ¢33 (986,171) (934,548)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and
are signed on its behalf by:

REESN _E-_—F=BF_+HH
HETH T EZRAEE

Lyu NingJiang Hu YongGang

BE; A 7
Chairman and Executive Director Non-executive Director
FIERBITEE FFHITEE
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B HEIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—HF+_A=1+—HLEE

44.

45.

184

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

44. T RATRIEBTERAR @

Note: BT
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: TRABZREBRHBOT :
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B& {7 s 1S Retisia 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET
At 1 January 2020 RIE2EZZ2F—F—H 1,059,713 (1,109,403) (49,690)
Loss and total comprehensive income  FRESIER 2 EINALZE
for the year = (953,373) (953,373)
At 31 December 2020 and RIZ2EF+_"_A=+—HxK
at 1 January 2021 2 —%—H—H 1,059,713 (2,062,776) (1,003,063)
Loss and total comprehensive income — FAE51E R 2 EUALREE
for the year - (51,623) (51,623)
At 31 December 2021 BR-2-—%+-A=+—H 1,059,713 (2,114,399) (1,054,686)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Restructuring

On 16 February 2022, a framework agreement (the
"Restructuring Agreement”) was entered into between
the Company; the JPLs; the Investor; and Mr. Lyu in
relation to transactions (the “Restructuring Transactions”)
collectively as: (a) the proposed capital reorganisation of
the Company’s share capital involving (i) share premium
cancellation; (i) capital reduction; and (iii) the unissued share
capital cancellation (collectively referred to as the “Capital
Reorganisation”); (b) the subscription of 2,260,980,856 new
shares of the Company under this framework agreement
by the Investor (the “Investor Subscription”); and (iii) the
proposed scheme of arrangement of the Company under
Sections 670, 673 and 674 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) between the Company and its creditors, in its
present form, or with or subject to any modification of it, any
addition to it or any condition approved or imposed by the
High Court of the HKSAR (the “Scheme”).

Details of above are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 March 2022.

45.

IREHAIREIE

=4

RIEZZFZR+A B &xaa H#
FEFEBA - REERSALETIL
ERGE (EEEBRE) > ABEAX
5 (TEERB)) (X2 REANE
BREAEMR P R)FHERMDESE ;)
BRASHIR 5 Fe(iii) skt R EBEITIRA (458
MEHREH)) ; Rb)REBRIEILIE
RSB AR B12,260,980,856 B #
B (T EEBBEIA)) ; R(iiDER
BERIE R BER (35622EF) 55670673
R67416 A AT REEEALRIR
BRIV ST U= HEsT 8 SUERI SR
TEE B~ E AR HE B
1TBU& =5 25 A Bt S B 0 B9 1R AT - 14
(Tt&l) -

B EXHEBHENAATDBREAZ
ey =l ol = | SN
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45.

B —F+_A=+—HILEE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

Restructuring (continued)

By an order made by the High Court of the HKSAR (the "HK
Court”) dated 8 February 2022 (the “Order”), the HK Court
has directed a Scheme Meeting (the “Scheme Meeting”) be
convened of the Scheme Creditors of the Company for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving (with or
without modification or condition approved and imposed by
the HK Court) the Scheme proposed to be made between
the Company and the Scheme Creditors pursuant to Sections
670, 671, 673 and 674 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). The Scheme was approved by the requisite statutory
majorities of the creditors on 11 March 2022.

On 22 March 2022, the solicitors of the Company received a
letter from the HK Court informing that Mr. Justice Harris will
make an order to sanction the Scheme without modification.
As HK Court is currently subject to general adjournment of
proceedings, the sealed sanction order will be delivered
to the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong after 11
April 2022, which is the earliest date the HK Court resume
normal proceedings or when the general adjournment of

proceedings ends.

Details of above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 18 February 2022 and 12 March 2022.

45.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =ZZE”—

REHAIBEEIE @

4 (@)
$E%f§i§%¢%ﬂljﬁﬁz@%%5ﬂ% (TE#
EBRY) FREHBA S __£_ 8
NENES (EL)) BB EREET
KpAFItEERAGHE g& (M5
BlEgE:) UEERMENE (ERES
BT RE B ERHLES IR ) 4
NAHEFEBERAREA Tﬂﬂﬁ(
622) 5670671 673K% 674157
EHMEEl st BER B "F=8
+—BHEZEEMBEZZHEREANNM
o

RIEZZHF=BZ+ZH ' &xRAH

RENUN RSB ERE R > B Justice
Harrisft 4 8 7E K #HEE 5T 8 R e Mg s
NS HREBEREREEREZE
RERSES  MEBHNENFRTF RN R
TTHFEMNB+—H BIEBERMELE
B REFNEEREERZEREH
B 2B TERRABHMERER

ERLEXHFBEHNARATEBERZ
T _HF_A+NBKRZE_&F=
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45.

46.

186

I T e = A —H IE T

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

The new infections of COVID-19

Due to the outbreak of the Omicron variant of the COVID-19
pandemic in March 2022 in the PRC, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been implemented by the PRC
authorities. The Group will continue to pay close attention
to the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operation
of the Group and will notify the shareholders and potential
investors of the Company in accordance with the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this announcement, the Board was
not aware of any material adverse impact on the Group's
operation and financial statements as a result of the outbreak
of the Omicron variant of the COVID-19 pandemic since its
outspread in early March 2022 in the PRC.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March
2022.

45.

46. 4

HEHREERE@®

WA SRR S — R RRG
ZTEI_F-ZRHEAMBEET
COVID-19%& 158 O0Omicron & & &%
FOHREBNEER T — &5 TEB A
EHER AEBRKEBEZTRE
COVID-19%B B E R ST EBASE
EMBERAREENTZE I RKRE
THRABAAAEIRERBELRE
BoNARNSHE EFEUW AT
B2 2F= AT R EAHIEE
COVID-19%Z 15 Omicron 1& %5 55 ¥
REENESERPBRREMAEME
KRR Eo

R E MR AE

N7

REMBRRENZZE-Z_F=A°
“tThHESESgHERRET S
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMFHEE

A summary of the Group's results for the last five financial years
and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2021, 2020, 2019, 2018 and 2017 as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below. The summary does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

TYHINAEBRBERERBREERE
BEARANEEANR_ S —E-“B°FFE-_
B NN DB SNER T = H
=+ HHNEERBENHE BREAERT
BB EHELEZMHRRKR AP EL R

BB B RERB—8 7

Year ended 31 December

#E+-_A=1+—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=S=—%| “2°2F B-hAF IB—N\E TB—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Erx FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E
REVENUE W 116,067 24,304 654,318 1,097,593 2,999,973
Cost of sales and S E AN R AR VRS
services rendered (101,651) (19,9006) (614,262)  (1,031,644)  (2,883,059)
Gross profit EF 14,416 4,398 40,056 65,949 116,914
Other income, gains and Htn A~ Wz & (B518)
(losses), net A (48,192) (374,992) (50,584) 334,068 58,472
Allowances for ECLs on FEWER R [EIRET K
trade, loan and other HttEWRIERBEE
receivables, net BIREHPE (2,850)  (348,305)  (382,779)  (198,039) =
Impairment on amount due B —FGE R RER(E
from a joint venture - = = (15,003) =
Impairment on amount due  EW—FEME R B RIRR(E
from an associate - - (8,783) - -
Provision for financial guarantee #1 F5{E{REE (2,000) (7,200) (25,800) = =
Selling and distribution HERDHER
expenses (386) (2,922) (7,860) (7,641) (2,835)
Administrative expenses THER (15,762) (44,617) (100,517) (123,478) (62,509
Other expenses Hithf (101,823)  (212,513) (6,823) (8,798) (14,135)
Finance costs RE A (117,730)  (120,129)  (158,603)  (156,100) (74,418)
Share of results of: FEIhE4E
Joint ventures HEAT - (1,091) (551) 4,183 (6,165)
An associate —BHEAT - = (4,480) (107,938) (16,865)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRI (274,327) (1,107,371)  (706,724) (212,797 (1,541)
Income tax (expense)/credit Friei (%) /g% (233) 42,952 (14,350) (27,651) (6,697)
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Year ended 31 December

#E+_A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“$--F "I_TF "F-AF “F\F _F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT TAT FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (274,560) (1,064,419) (721,074) (240,448) (8,238)
Attributable to: BUFE R :
Owners of the Company KATER A (274,550)  (1,055,985) (691,607) (226,976) (4,445)
Non-controlling interests JEERR (10) (8,434) (29,467) (13,472) (3,793)
(274,560) (1,064,419) (721,074) (240,448) (8,238)
As at 31 December
®+=-B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—Z-— “EC%F “E-hE ZZ-)\E& Z+t&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHAT FAT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERGE
TOTAL ASSETS BEHBE 224,642 163,211 1,150,016 2,039,568 1,852,545
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEa%E (1,488,461) (1,149,710)  (1,131,598)  (1,292,757) (928,074)
(1,263,819) (986,499) 18,418 746,811 924,471
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